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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Members of the community of Spring Valley Lake have decided to investigate the feasibility of 

creating a “Spring Valley Lake Community Services District” (referred as SVLCSD) to provide 

certain municipal level services for the community that are currently being provided by San 

Bernardino County through their Special Districts Department. 

The “Spring Valley Lake Exploratory Group” has been formed to study the financial feasibility of 

local control over certain services, prepare the study, and provide communication and feedback 

to the community.  The ultimate decision as to whether the community wishes to assume local 

control will be made by the registered voters of the proposed service area. 

It is the duty, responsibility, and role of the public to hold the government accountable at all 

times.  Investigations into these matters are a necessary part of governing and being governed.  

We believe this process to be very open ended and not a predetermined march to creating a 

local CSD.  It is with that in mind that we prepare this study and investigate the feasibility of a 

local CSD. 

That said, there are two outcomes from this study: 

1. We determine not to assume local control for certain municipal services. 

2. We determine that it is financially feasible, cost effective and in the best interests of the 

residents to obtain local governance to form the Spring Valley Lake CSD and the voters 

ratify that decision in a public vote. 

The following study will provide the case, logic, and financial analysis for that decision process. 

Finally, it is important for the reader of this document to know that this report has been 

researched and prepared by the Spring Valley Lake CSD Exploratory Group.  The reason behind 

doing the report ourselves is twofold. 

First, we will have a better understanding of the financials, operations, and challenges of 

creating a CSD if we prepare the report ourselves.  Investigations into County operations, other 

local CSD and industry experts has provided this group with a level of understanding that would 

not have been obtained if we contracted this out. 

Secondly, the cost of $20,000 - $30,000 seems very expensive to produce such a report when 

appropriate capacity exists among the Group to complete the study.  Included in the report is 

the financial analysis of three contemplated services.  

Feasibility Study Summary 

The following will serve as a high-level summary to the detailed Feasibility Study also contained 

in this document. 
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Local Control: 

Community Service Districts “CSD’s” have existed in California since the 1800’s.  It was always 

intended that, when possible, a community of size would manage its own services.  San 

Bernardino County has approximately 90 CSA’s of which about 17 have water and/or sewer 

services.  These CSA’s are all managed by the Special Districts department of the County.  Many 

of these CSA’s are small and require the assistance of Special Districts.  CSA’s that are managed 

by the County were created to help provide services until a local community of size could create 

its own district and manage their own services. 

Decision making for these services are best made at a local level.  The more local the 

governance, the better it is for those being served.  Residents are elected to a board.  Local 

boards make decisions based on local needs.  The residents of the community are better 

served. 

Boundaries: 

The Spring Valley Lake Community Services District boundary would be similar to the County 

Service Area (CSA) 64 boundary.  This boundary extends slightly beyond the Spring Valley Lake 

(SVL) homeowners association boundary.  The contemplated services for the new SVL 

Community Services District would be water, wastewater collection, solid waste management 

and park & recreation services.  Each of these potential services will be discussed in greater 

detail in this draft report. 

The current boundaries are: 

• Ridgecrest on the west. 

• Bear Valley on the south 

• Mojave Narrows on the north 

• Apple Valley Road on the east cutting in Pimlico Road to include the Equestrian Estates 

• Near Yucca Loma Bridge there are a few houses on the east side of the river that are in 

the boundaries but receive no service. 

• Only a small part of Mojave Narrows is within the boundary.   

• The boundaries of the current CSA 64 and SVL-CSD include parts of unincorporated 

county, City of Victorville, and Town of Apple Valley.  Continuity of services is important 

to each part of this group. 

Services:  Current & Projected: 

Current services are: 

• Water 

• Sewer 
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• Roads 

• Parkway Maintenance 

• Street Sweeping 

Proposed services are: 

• Water 

• Sewer 

• Street Sweeping 

• Solid Waste 

• Parks 

The roads were eliminated as CSA 64 does not maintain the roads.  Public Works for the County 

currently provides those services.  As the roads need repair, it would not be prudent to take 

them over until the County does the necessary repairs. 

Solid Waste is being added to provide an income stream to the community of approximately 

$400,000 per year via franchise fees and handling the ESFR/Dump fees. 

Parks are being added as part of our strategic plan and provides us the ability to address park 

needs in our community. 

Financials: 

There is clearly a cost benefit to creating a new SVL-CSD.  Creating the new budgets for the SVL-

CSD was very challenging due to the accounting practices of Special Districts relative to pooling 

costs and allocating local CSA’s with additional “Home Office” costs.  That said we worked 

through the numbers using other CSD financials to assist us.  Even doing that the cost benefit 

seemed too good to be true.  We believed it prudent to partner with Rogers, Anderson, 

Malody, & Scott (a regional CPA firm) to examine our work and complete the budgeting process 

and reports.  RAMS is an industry expert in CSD’s having provided both auditing and financial 

accounting services for both CSD’s and the Special Districts Department of San Bernardino 

County.  

Those budgets are forecasting a substantial cost savings while increasing revenues via solid 

waste opportunities.  These increased revenues come from a redistribution of current revenues 

from the County to the local CSD.  This improvement should help mitigate any planned fee 

increases the Special Districts may be working on. 

Findings/Case to Do: 

• Local governance serves residents better. 

• Expense management by a locally elected board will drive down costs. 

LAFCO 3233

Attachment I



• The proposed SVL-CSD is clearly large enough to financially run their own services 

• Special Districts has become too large and the cost for support is too much relative to 

the benefit. 

• Creating a locally governed CSD with reduced expense structure and increase revenues 

(not from residents) will mitigate attempted and planned rate increases. 

Transition: 

Transition is no more than managing change.  Managing change is about understanding that 

change, knowing your end goal, creating a plan, collaborating with local industry experts, and 

executing that plan.  We have already identified individuals and companies that will assist us 

through any transition challenges. 

Summary: 

In conclusion, we recommend that the San Bernardino County Board of Supervisors and LAFCO 

let the residents of Spring Valley Lake decide through an election if they want to create a new 

CSD and assume the services currently provided by various County departments.  Please note 

the following reasons: 

Vision for the Spring Valley Lakes CSD 

“Self-determination and local control represent the foundation of the American governmental 

system, and perhaps no form of government is more “local” than the independent special 

district. Special districts are local government agencies that provide public infrastructure and 

essential services, including but not limited to, water, fire protection, recreation and parks, 

and garbage collection. Since California became a state in 1850, voters have established over 

2,000 independent special districts to meet their local needs.” 

This is a quote from the Special District Formation Guide provided by the California Special 

Districts Association (CSDA) and California Local Agency Formation Commission (CALAFCO).  

This statement clearly spells out: 

1. Self Determination and local control represent the foundation of the American 

governmental system.  An SVL CSD will bring government and decision making closer to 

the people that are being governed.  A local CSD will clearly provide this foundation and 

a representative government for services that is focused solely on the constituents of a 

newly formed SVL-CSD. 

2. Government by constituents at a local level will insure decisions based on what is best 

for this community. 

3. County management of services was never the goal for communities of size that can 

manage their own services.  That said, the creation of a local CSD (where possible and 

feasible) should be the goal of not only the local residents but the management of the 
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county itself.  We look forward to the County/Special Districts assisting us with this 

transition if voted in by the residents. 

We promote a “Yes” vote for the Spring Valley Lake – CSD.  
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INTRODUCTION 

BACKGROUND 

In unincorporated areas the County provides municipal level services such as solid waste 

management, water, wastewater, park and recreation, roads, flood control, public works, and a 

host of other services as needed.  The County provides these services until and unless another 

form of government provides those essential services for a community of interest.  In many 

cases, a city may be formed as we have seen in the high desert with the incorporation of the 

Town of Apple Valley and the City of Hesperia in the mid to last 1980’s.  Community Services 

Districts (CSD’s) which have many potential powers or services that can be provided have been 

formed in several of the High Desert areas were incorporation is either not an option or not 

economically feasible.  These CSD’s have been formed and assumed responsibilities that were 

formerly provided by various County departments, including County Service Areas and County 

Solid Waste Department.  County Service Areas were never intended to be permanent but a 

means to provide needed services until unincorporated communities of size could create and 

manage their own districts.  

PROCESS     

The formation of a community services district is the mechanism whereby a local community 

can develop a structure for service provision that best meets the needs of a specific community 

with policy direction provided by local residents with a vested interest in cost containment and 

specific service provision.  All revenue generated through the provision of service would stay 

within the community.  Other CSD’s have found significant cost savings through local control. 

The process of formation requires review by the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO).  

This is a formal commission formed by state law with unique responsibilities that includes 

formation of entities like a CSD.  To begin the LAFCO process, a feasibility analysis is required.  

This sets forth the services contemplated by the new district, the governance and management 

structure, the financial feasibility, and other specific details. LAFCO staff reviews the viability of 

the proposed district and once all necessary information is provided holds a public hearing for 

the Commission to decide.  If the Commission approves the formation it then goes to the Board 

of Supervisors who takes action to put it on the ballot for the registered voters in the 

community to affirm or deny the formation of the new Spring Valley Lake Community Services 

District.   

CSA 64 Spring Valley Lake was established on December 30, 1968 by an act of the Board of 

Supervisors of the County of San Bernardino (the County) to provide sewer and water services 

(and more) for Spring Valley Lake. CSA-64 currently provides sewer services to approximately 

4,200 equivalent dwelling units (EDU’s) and maintains 3 lift stations and one pump station.  

CSA-64 also provides water services to approximately 3,800 customers and maintains 6 wells, 1 
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booster station and 3 water tanks.  In addition to those two enterprise services, CSA-64 

provides parkway maintenance, street sweeping and coordinates with Public Works for road 

maintenance and storm water drain maintenance. 

In the High Desert we have seen the conversion of three CSA’s to CSD’s in recent history.  While 

not all of these are the same in services or markets, it is important to note the success and 

challenges of each in forming a recommendation to the residents of CSA-64. 

Helendale is the most similar to Spring Valley Lake but differs in that it encompasses a much 

larger geographic area beyond the Silver Lakes community.   Helendale CSD provides Water and 

Sanitation the same as Spring Valley Lake except that Helendale CSD has its own Sanitation 

Treatment plant.   

Phelan provides water services but not sanitation.  The Phelan/Pinon Hill market is significantly 

different as it is more rural, lots are bigger and distance between properties are much further 

than Spring Valley Lake.  In addition, many roads are still dirt and roads are still being put in.  

This creates a bigger need for engineering.  It appears that the area has lacked consistency in 

pipes that were installed prior to the creation of that CSD.  These reasons would dictate a much 

higher cost to operate. 

Wrightwood has no enterprise services.  Based on this, Wrightwood is not a good comparison 

for creation of a SVL-CSD. 

Spring Valley lends itself to be more successful relative to cost due to density of houses and the 

quality and condition of our infrastructure.  Our roads and pipes are completed and only need 

to be maintained.  Sanitation treatment is provided by Victor Valley Waste Water Reclamation.  

It is the role of SVL to get their sewage to Yates road on the north where it then becomes the 

responsibility of VVWRA.  VVWRA is the product of a Joint Powers Agreement between Apple 

Valley, Hesperia, Victorville, and the County of San Bernardino which represents CSA-64 (Spring 

Valley Lake) and CSA-42 (Oro Grande). 

Management of water, the wells, and storage is the majority of the work for CSA-64 or a newly 

created SVL – CSD. 

The density and condition of this CSA/CSD would allow it to run at a much lower cost than other 

service areas.   
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SPRING VALLEY LAKE CSD BOUNDARIES 

The proposed boundaries of the Spring Valley Lake CSD would be the same as CSA-64and are 

exhibited in the following pages by the map.  Essentially CSA-64 includes the entire footprint of 

Spring Valley Lake Association in addition to some commercial areas and a portion of Mojave 

Narrows.  The boundaries could further be described as: 

• Ridgecrest on the west. 

• Bear Valley on the south. 

• Apple Valley Road on the east – coming back in on Pimlico and encompassing the 

Equestrian part of Spring Valley Lake Association. 

• It then follows the Mojave River to Yucca Loma/Yates Road and goes to Ridgecrest. 

• The boundary includes part of Mojave Narrows Regional Park 

• The boundary also includes a residential section of Apple Valley near the Yucca Loma 

bridge.   

It is important to note that the section east of the Mojave River is within the Town of Apple 

Valley.  CSA – 64 provides both water and sanitation to the residential and commercial section 

in Apple Valley that falls in this map.  While we believe that the Town of Apple Valley has an 

interest in the formation of this CSD, we do not believe they have interest in providing water 

and sanitation currently. 

The current map does show parts of Apple Valley (not part of the SVLA EQ side) that is included 

in the CSA-64 area.  However, CSA-64 has indicated that while this area is in the map CSA-64 

does not provide services there.   

Keeping the boundaries essentially the same for the new Community Services District will: 

• Provide continuity of service delivery structure to all parties involved. 

• Maintaining the current cross-jurisdictional boundary will protect Spring Valley Lake from 

annexation that will result in the dissolution of the CSD. Therefore, the community will be 

able to maintain some form of local control.   

• It would be in the best interest of the residents of the Town of Apple Valley currently in the 

eastern boundary area to remain with the CSD than be annexed to Liberty Utilities and a 

significantly higher rate structure. 

 

CURRENT SERVICES PROVIDED BY COUNTY 

County Solid Waste Division currently provides the following services: 

• Solid Waste Management 

o Dump Cards 

LAFCO 3233

Attachment I



o Oversees Franchise agreement with Advanced Disposal 

CSA-64 currently provides the following services: 

• Water 

• Sewer 

• Roads 

• Parkway maintenance 

• Street sweeping 

While the roads are listed as approved services, CSA-64 partners with Public Works to maintain 

the roads.  The roads are a source of contention with the SVL-HOA as they are need of 

significant repair.   

Public works currently manages storm water drainage also.  Due to the significant cost factor, it 

is our intent that the roads and drainage remain with Public works. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED SERVICES 

We are proposing the following services: 

• Water 

• Sewer  
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• Street Sweeping  

• Solid Waste 

• Parks 

At this time, we do not want to include roads in our list of powers, due to the extensive costs to 

maintain and repair with no funding mechanism.  

Solid Waste 

We wish to add solid waste which will provides franchise fees and ESFR tax fees for the new 

CSD. This means that money that is currently going to county government would stay within the 

community and be used for appropriate purposes locally. Currently each property pays $85.14 

per year on the property taxes that goes to County Solid Waste Division.  That money is used to 

pay for self-haulers who utilize the dump cards.  It is our belief that this generates over 

$300,000 additional revenue for a service that costs significantly less because in our estimation 

there are a limited number of people who actually utilize the dump passes.  The new CSD would 

continue the provide dump passes for those who wish to use them, but because the money is 

retained locally it could be utilized for other beneficial programs or rate stabilization. 

In addition, the County receives a franchise fee from the waste hauler for the exclusive right to 

service our community.  The current fee is 10% of the bill that is paid to county with no local 

benefit received.   

There are two areas of the proposed CSD boundary that will continue to receive solid waste 

services from others.  The portion in the Town of Apple Valley and the portion of the CSD 

boundary in Victorville will continue to receive service from Burrtec per franchise agreement 

that those jurisdictions have.  In an effort to maintain continuity for those customers and 

respect their franchise agreements, no changes will be contemplated. 

Parks 

Park powers are also being considered which will allow the CSD to augment existing 

recreational programming for the community as the need may arise.  These would be fee-based 

services that would enhance quality of life within the community.  In the future this committee 

would like to explore the potential to have free access for CSD residents to Mojave Narrows 

Park through a partnership with County Parks Department. While we have no intention of 

creating a park at this time having the ability for park and recreation services will allow for 

opportunities in the future and the creation of programs that will benefit the community.   
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WATER AND SEWER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

In preparing, reading, and understanding this feasibility study, it is critical that one understand 

the current financial model of the Special Districts Department (SDD) and its County Service 

Areas. 

While each CSA has its own financials and reports, they all operate as a part of the Special 

Districts Department.  All costs are originated at the Special Districts level.  All CSA’s fall under 

the County Special Districts Department.  Both equipment and employees all reside at the 

Special Districts Department level.  As work is done those costs are allocated to the local CSA’s.  

In addition, all management and support costs including retirement, medical and other 

overhead for Special Districts are allocated to all CSA’s. 

Each CSA operates as a fully allocated cost/revenue center for Special Districts.  This means that 

100% of SDD and costs incurred through other County departments for the Special Districts 

Department are pushed down to all the CSA’s creating a fully allocated cost/revenue center. As 

costs to support the department structure increase so must the revenue in the form of water 

and sewer rates increase to cover those costs. 

This means that the costs, at a local level, are dictated by a centralized “Home Office” that 

serves over 90 CSA’s and only 17 that manage water and/or sanitation.  The proximity and 

makeup of each of the CSA’s will certainly impact the costs that are allocated to each CSA. 

In the event that a locally controlled SVL Community Services District is created, 100% of those 

costs will be managed at a local level and only the operations of the CSD will dictate the costs of 

that CSD. 

While many will argue that economies of scale should prevail and would drive costs down, 

many would also argue that a bloated central office is not the most efficient way to keep costs 

down.  Sometimes big is just big and not the answer to driving down costs.  Cost efficiencies are 

not a function of size but a function of focus.  Please note the following example: 

In reviewing a proposed 2018 budget (work in progress) it was noted that the budgeted 

expense for Sanitation labor is only $89,000.  That same number for Water is $358,000.  That 

means that out of a budgeted $4mm less than $500,000 is actual operation labor costs.  That is 

only 12.5% of budgeted Salary cost is going to actual operations. 

Another example of cost management is the Archway.  The Archway is a structure built many 

years ago at the entrance of Spring Valley Lake.  It sits at Bear Valley and Spring Valley Lake 

Parkway.  The structure is old and in need of repairs, demolition or be replaced.  This 

conversation started several years ago with the Association wanting someone to replace, 

remove or repair the Archway as it is not property of the Association.  Somehow CSA-64 was 

involved and came up with a plan to tear down and build a new entry something.  At a recent 
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association meeting it was projected for completion this year.  The concern is that the cost on this 8’ x 8’ 

water fall is projected at $250,000.  This is an excessive amount of money.  We do not believe that the 

community understood those funds to be coming from our CSA-64 budget.  Furthermore, we do not 

believe that a local board would have ever approved that project at that cost.  A local CSD would not 

have spent $250,000+or- on a project like this.  Since that time the bids actually came in significantly 

higher.  It appears that the project is being cancelled except for the removal of the existing archway. 

Another example of cost management would be the replacement of our water meters.  Helendale is 

going through the same process at the same time. 

Helendale did analysis on different meters, size of meters and installation.  Helendale chose the IPERL ¾ 

“composite meter.  Composite was deemed acceptable for two reasons.  First, the meters in Helendale 

(like Spring Valley Lake) sit behind curbs.  The need for metal meters is not necessary as it might be in 

rural areas where cars are more prone to drive on top of them.  In addition, today’s brass is softer as the 

lead content has been reduced in them.  A ¾” meter would handle the needs of all existing Spring Valley 

Lake properties.  New construction might need at 1” meter due to fire sprinkler requirements.  Using ¾ “ 

vs 1” has been vetted with industry experts and deemed acceptable. 

In contrast, Special Districts has chosen the 1” Badger made of brass.  This choice might have been made 

to match the needs of the entire county vs the needs our Spring Valley Lake.  Consideration may have 

been given due to the rural area that much of the remaining CSA’s reside in and their lack of curbs.  The 

desire is to have a stronger meter less likely to be damaged.  However, we have learned that the current 

brass meters (without lead) are softer.  Also, and more importantly, Spring Valley Lake does not need 

“crush resistant” meters as cars do not travel over them.  This is where local management would match 

the needs of our community and save money. 

The cost differences are: (numbers are estimates based off quotes) 

 
 Unit Cost Units Total 

Badger 1" $233 3800 $885,400 

    
IPERL 3/4" $117 3800 $444,600 

    
Cost Difference   $440,800 
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SPECIAL DISTRICTS ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

The organizational chart for Special Districts will help understand the top-heavy cost structure 

of the Special Districts Department.  To serve 90+ CSA’s, the organization, processes and 

overhead appear to have grown too large.  In addition, as other larger CSA’s have left and 

formed CSD’s, this most likely has resulted in the unchanged cost overhead being spread over a 

smaller number of CSA’s with CSA 64 bearing the most of that expense due to size of that CSA. 

The chart below shows the different departments that each CSA supports.  An independent 

SVL-CSD would be able to achieve significant cost saving by not having to contribute to 

supporting this large department.  While we would have needs for similar services, we could 

outsource or handle them in house. 

 

 

  

Special Districts 
Admin

Fiscal Budget HR Legal
Information 
Technology

Engineering
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REVENUE OVERVIEW 

Our study believes that revenues will remain at current levels for the foreseeable future.  

Expense reductions/management will eliminate the need for rate increases that the Special 

Districts have proposed in the past and are currently attempting to get approved again. 

CSA 64 currently receives revenue from: 

• Water Enterprise Services 

• Sanitation Enterprise Services 

• Property Taxes 
 
County Solid Waste Department received revenue from: 

• Solid Waste Franchise Fees 

• Solid Waste Taxes paid by residents 
 

Spring Valley Lake Community Services District will receive revenue from: 

• Water Enterprise Services 

• Sanitation Enterprise Services (Sewer) 

• Property Taxes 

• Solid Waste Franchise Fees 

• Solid Waste Disposal Fees paid on tax bill paid by residents 

Currently the County’s Solid Waste Department keeps the solid waste franchise fees and Solid 

Waste Disposal fees.   

Water 

Special Districts proposed a rate increase 2017 that was denied.  The increases were substantial 

as noted below in their proposal.  Even though denied, we have been told that the rate increase 

proposal will be presented again in the future to the Board of Supervisors for approval. Our 

study believes that a newly created SVLCSD will be able to operate the system more efficiently 

by not paying for county’s significant overhead and avoid a rate increase for the foreseeable 

future due to expense management and local oversight.  In addition, solid waste revenue and 

franchise fees will add to the revenue of the new CSD.  

The following is the previously attempted increase that was not approved in 2017.  As you can 

see, this proposal would result in a substantial increase in water rates over a five-year period.  
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This is difficult to understand based on the facts that costs have not increased that amount and 

Special Districts has stated that they are currently cutting costs substantially. 

 

 

The argument we continue to hear is that our water rates are the best in the High Desert.  

Having good rates is not a license to increase them vs managing expenses. 

Sewer Fees 

Currently CSA 64 contracts with VVWRA for disposal of sewage.  VVWRA would provide those 

same services for a newly formed CSD.  We do not anticipate any change in revenue for sewer 

fees as there should be no negative impact to sewer expenses related to changing from a CSA 

to a CSD. 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes and assessments are approximately $460,000 per year.  We do not expect this 

revenue stream to change. 
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Solid Waste: 

Solid Waste offers two opportunities for additional revenues for our community. 

Franchise Fees: 

Current disposal company pays a franchise fee to the County for the exclusive right to 

service the area. The current solid waste company for Spring Valley Lake is Advance 

Disposal.  The service provider will not change, but the franchise fee will be paid to the 

CSD instead of County Solid Waste. 

As you will see in the proposed financials we believe that amount to be approximately 

$90,000 annually that would come back to our community.  Also, important is to 

understand that franchise fees are unrestricted funds that the CSD can use as they see 

fit.  Currently this money goes to the San Bernardino County Solid Waste Department. 

Solid Waste Disposal Fees (ESFR): 

Properties in CSA 64 (not counting the EQ section in Apple Valley) are taxed $84.57 per 

year for dump fees.  These fees are collected by the County and used to pay for disposal 

costs.  What is not used is kept by County Solid Waste Department and not returned to 

the community for use.  

In a SVL -CSD model with solid waste as one of the services provided, those fees would 

then belong to the SVL CSD.   

We estimate those funds (after netting out dump fee reimbursement) to be 

approximately $400,000 per year that comes back to our community and not the 

County.   

The very important part of this is that fees collected by the County for Dump fees are 

not being equitably returned in benefits, services or rebates to those paying that tax.  A 

CSD will insure that those funds are kept in the community and benefit those that are 

being taxed.  If the board/community decides, the fees may be offered as a credit to 

residents against their bills.  The point is that these funds belong to the community and 

should bring benefit to the community. 
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EXPENSES 

Expense management clearly provides the greatest opportunity for our community to manage 

costs.  While we all understand that costs do increase over time, we also recognize that the 

costs for the services we receive supports a much larger county structure.   Local oversight 

would mean a small efficient staff augmented by strategic use of contract services will best help 

the Spring Valley Lake CSD manage our costs.   

Discussions have taken place with many that know and understand the services and costs of 

running our district.  The numbers in our study have been researched and well thought out.  

There is little doubt that a locally managed CSD that is not encumbered with the extremely high 

overhead of County departments would benefit the community with a much lower expense 

model for delivery services. 

Salaries and benefits are based on chart enclosed.  

We do recognize that both Phelan and Helendale have higher staffing models.  Please note the 

following: 

• Phelan/Pinon Hills is a different market with unique needs.  It is still growing, making 

roads, and space between houses and water systems are much further apart.  Each 

project they do will be more expensive based on this.  This is quite different from the 

SVL-CSD model.  SVL-CSD can clearly operate with fewer people due to the size of the 

service area and close proximity of facilities. 

• Helendale CSD is probably the most comparable CSD with a few differences: 

o Helendale sanitation has its own waste water treatment plant.  This will cause 

their expenses to be higher.  SVL CSD will continue to send wastewater flows to 

VVWRA and continue to pay the same fees as the County has paid in the past. 

• Finally, it is our intention that we operate at a very lean number of employees and fixed 

costs.  We will leverage the ability to contract work that will free us from having the 

fixed costs of employees, equipment, equipment maintenance and equipment 

replacement only to have use of those things a few times per year.  Our budget provides 

for those variable expenses in our services and supplies line. 

While our study will not mimic the exact same numbers or categories of the CSA-64 reports, we 

wish to provide the following detail to these line items and the expenses included in the SVL 

CSD projections: 
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Services and Supplies: 

This line (relative to the projections) includes the following: 

• Contracted labor/services that are outside the scope of the staff at SVL CSD. 

• Supplies needed for maintenance of enterprise services of SVL CSD. 

• Wastewater Fees to VVWRA. 

Administration: 

This line (relative to the projections) includes the following: 

• Lease expense 

• Office expenses such as equipment, supplies etc. 

• Communication such as phones and internet 

• Mailings, emails, and website 

• Billing 

• Other nominal items 

Insurance: 

The County currently “self-insures”.  While that may seem to some as a cost savings, that 

amount is probably nominal.  Self-insuring means you pay those losses.  CSD’s along with other 

municipalities can be insured by SDRMA.  Special District Risk Management Authority is a public 

agency formed under California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. and provides a full-

service risk management program for California’s local governments. For over 31 years, SDRMA 

has provided members with comprehensive coverage protection. 
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CSA 64 Audited Reports/Detailed Reports 
 

The following pages provide the last 3 years of audited CSA 64 reports. 
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Board of Supervisors 
County of San Bernardino Special 
District County Service Area 
No. 64 Spring Valley Lake 

 
Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the County of San 
Bernardino Special District County Service Area No. 64 Spring Valley Lake 
(CSA), a component unit of the County of San Bernardino, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise CSA's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the minimum audit requirements and 
reporting guidelines for California Special Districts required by the Office of the 
State Controller. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

LAFCO 3233

Attachment I



 

LAFCO 3233

Attachment I



Board of Supervisors 
County of San Bernardino Special 
District County Service Area 
No. 64 Spring Valley Lake 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

 
Opinions 

 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the County of San Bernardino Special District County Service Area No. 64 Spring Valley Lake 
as of June 30, 2017 and the changes in financial position and its cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as 
accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special 
districts. 

 
Other Matters 

 
Prior-Year Comparative Information 

 
Prior year data has been included with the basic financial statements for comparative purposes only. The 
financial statements of the County of San Bernardino Special District County Service Area No. 64 Spring 
Valley Lake as of June 30, 2016, were audited by other auditors whose report dated November 28, 2016 
expressed unmodified opinions on those statements. 

 
Required Supplementary Information 

 
Management has omitted Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Schedules of Pension Plan 
Contribution and Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability that accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the 
basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

 
November 22, 2017 
Riverside, California 
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Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

June 30, 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Assets 

2017 
Enterprise Funds 

Sewer Water Total 

Cash and investments $ 4,438,846 $   3,965,250 $ 8,404,096 

Restricted cash and investments 50,780 - 50,780 
Accounts receivable 535,891 321,411 857,302 
Taxes receivable 10 10,932 10,942 
Special assessment receivable 578 780 1,358 
Interest receivable 13,785 15,135 28,920 
Capital assets 

Capital assets not being depreciated 50,294 1,886,925 1,937,219 
Capital assets being depreciated, 

net of accumulated depreciation 789,358 3,746,814 4,536,172 
Total assets 5,879,542 9,947,247 15,826,789 

 
Deferred outflows of resources 

Pension 430,968 402,141 833,109 
 

Liabilities 
Current: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities -  267,011  267,011 
Matured unredeemed bonds payable 30,000  -  30,000 
Interest payable on matured unredeemed bonds 20,780  -  20,780 
Due to other governments 131,641  -  131,641 
Due to other funds 688  22,189  22,877 
Customer deposits - 13,222 13,222 

Long-term 
Net pension liability 873,401  814,981  1,688,382 

Total liabilities 1,056,510  1,117,403  2,173,913 
 
Deferred inflows of resources 

Pension 

 
 

196,269 

  
 

183,141 

  
 

379,410 
 
Net position 

Net investment in capital assets 

 
 

839,652 

  
 

5,633,739 

  
 

6,473,391 
Unrestricted 4,218,079  3,415,105  7,633,184 

Total net position  $     5,057,731  $   9,048,844  $    14,106,57 
 
 
 
 
5 

 

 

The accompanying notes are in integral part of the financial statements 
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Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

June 30, 2017 
 

 
 
 
 

Assets 

For Comparative Purposes Only 
2016 

Enterprise Funds 
Sewer  Water  Total 

Cash and investments $  3,773,804 $    4,438,930 $  8,212,734 

Restricted cash and investments  50,780  -  50,780 
Accounts receivable  349,197  292,552  641,749 
Taxes receivable  -  11,047  11,047 
Special assessment receivable  1,070  493  1,563 
Interest receivable  65,860  49,435  115,295 
Capital assets 

Capital assets not being depreciated  45,699  1,048,033  1,093,732 
Capital assets being depreciated, 

net of accumulated depreciation  893,772  3,938,508  4,832,280 
Total assets  5,180,182  9,778,998  14,959,180 

 
Deferred outflows of resources 

Pension  83,524  76,998  160,522 
 

Liabilities 
Current: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities -  27,468  27,468 
Matured unredeemed bonds payable 30,000  -  30,000 
Interest payable on matured unredeemed bonds 20,780  -  20,780 
Due to other governments 43,803  -  43,803 
Due to other funds 121  19,419  19,540 
Customer deposits -  11,622  11,622 

Long-term: 
Net pension liability 664,566  612,642  1,277,208 

Total liabilities 759,270  671,151  1,430,421 
 
Deferred inflows of resources 

Pension 

 
 

232,533 

  
 

214,365 

  
 

446,898 
 
Net position 

     

Net investment in capital assets 939,471  4,986,541  5,926,012 
Unrestricted 3,332,432  3,983,939  7,316,371 

Total net position  $      4,271,903  $    8,970,480  $   13,242,383 

 

The accompanying notes are in integral part of the financial statements 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 
 

 
Operating Revenues 

2017 
Enterprise Funds 

Sewer Water Total 

Sanitation services $   2,431,422 $ - $   2,431,422 

Water sales - 2,081,147 2,081,147 
Connection fees 44,029 42,628 86,657 
Permit and inspection fees 1,950 3,300 5,250 
Penalties 42,699 37,190 79,889 
Other services - 54,355 54,355 

 
Total operating revenues 2,520,100 2,218,620 4,738,720 

 

 
Operating Expenses 

Salaries and benefits 

 
 

1,162,718 

  
 

1,069,171 

  
 

2,231,889 
Services and supplies 1,061,325  711,405  1,772,730 
Water replacement -  301,950  301,950 
Utilities 9,280  138,603  147,883 
Depreciation 104,162 191,694 295,856 

 
Total operating expenses 

 
2,337,485 

  
2,412,823 

  
4,750,308 

 

Operating income (loss) 
 

182,615  
 

(194,203)  
 

(11,588) 
 
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Property taxes 400,409  37,785  438,194 
Special assessment and other taxes 23,095  23,002  46,097 
Investment earnings 21,643  23,636  45,279 
Transfers in 615,222  446,676  1,061,898 
Transfers outs (615,222)  (446,676)  (1,061,898) 
Loss on disposal of capital assets (252)  -  (252) 
Other revenues (expenses) 22,982  63,382  86,364 

 
Total non-operating revenues 

 
467,877 

  
147,805 

  
615,682 

 
Change in net position 

 
650,492 

  
(46,398) 

  
604,094 

 
Net position at beginning of year as previously reported 

 
4,271,903 

  
8,970,480 

  
13,242,383 

Prior-Period Adjustment 135,336  124,762  260,098 
Net assets at beginning of year as restated 4,407,239  9,095,242  13,502,481 
 

Net position at end of year 
 

 $   5,057,731 
  

$ 9,048,844 
  

$ 14,106,575 

 

The accompanying notes are in integral part of the financial statements 
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Operating Revenues: 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 

For Comparative Purposes Only 
2016 

Enterprise Funds 
Sewer  Water  Total 

Sanitation services $  2,497,245  $ -  $  2,497,245 

Water sales  -  2,095,658  2,095,658 
Connection fees  53,793  20,687  74,480 
Permit and inspection fees  1,200  2,550  3,750 
Penalties  33,679  29,908  63,587 
Other services  624  16,594  17,218 

 
Total operating revenues  2,586,541  2,165,397  4,751,938 

 
Operating Expenses: 

Professional Services 1,164,690  1,037,974  2,202,664 
Services and supplies 1,106,949  577,926  1,684,875 
Water replacement -  137,340  137,340 
Utilities 11,911  142,029  153,940 
Depreciation 104,278  191,694  295,972 

 
Total operating expenses 

 
2,387,828 

  
2,086,963 

  
4,474,791 

 

Operating income (loss) 
 

198,713  
 

78,434  
 

277,147 
 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)      
Property taxes 285  414,028  414,313 
Special assessment and other taxes 23,102  23,859  46,961 
Investment earnings 31,664  36,857  68,521 
Transfers in 1,112,576  2,364,801  3,477,377 
Transfers outs (1,112,576)  (2,364,801)  (3,477,377) 
Loss on disposal of capital assets -  -  - 
Other revenues (expenses) 16,623  55,176  71,799 

 
Total non-operating revenues 

 
71,674 

  
529,920 

  
601,594 

 

Change in net position 
 

270,387  
 

608,354  
 

878,741 
 

 

Net position at beginning of year 4,001,516  8,362,126  12,363,642 
 
Net position at end of year 

 
 $     4,271,903 

  
$  8,970,480 

  
$  13,242,383 
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Cash flows from operating activities: 

2017 
Sewer  Water 
Fund  Fund  Total 

Cash received from customers and others $ 2,392,143 $   2,231,072 $  4,623,215 

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services   (982,767)   (910,815)  (1,893,582) 
Cash payments to employees for services  (1,202,255)  (1,098,437)  (2,300,692) 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  207,121  221,820  428,941 
 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of capital assets  (4,595)  (838,892)  (843,487) 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital related and financing activities  (4,595)  (838,892)  (843,487) 
 

Cash flows from non-capital related and financing activities: 
Cash received from (paid to) other funds  557  2,770  3,327 

Taxes, special assessments, and other revenues  446,978  123,997  570,975 
 

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital related and financing activities 
 

447,535  
 

126,767  
 

574,302 
 
Cash flows from investing activities-interest income 

 
14,981  

 
16,625   

31,606 
 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments 
 

665,042  
 

(473,680)  
 

191,362 

Cash and investments, beginning of year 3,824,584  4,438,930  8,263,514 
 
Cash and investments, end of year 

 
 $ 4,489,626  

 
$   3,965,250   

$  8,454,876 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION: 
Cash and investments 

 

 
$ 4,438,846 

  

 
$   3,965,250 

  
 

$  8,404,096 
Restricted cash and investments 50,780  -  50,780 

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments  $ 4,489,626  $   3,965,250  $  8,454,876 
 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
used for operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities: 

 
 
$    182,615 

 
 
(194,203)  (11,588) 

Depreciation   104,162  191,694   295,856 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable  (127,957)   12,452  (115,505) 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits   -      1,600   1,600 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities  -  239,543  239,543 
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments  87,838  -  87,838 
Decrease in net pension liability, net of deferred outflows and inflows  (39,537)  (29,266)  (68,803) 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  $    207,121 $  221,820 $  428,941 
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Cash flows from operating activities: 

 

For Comparative Purposes Only 
2016 

Sewer  Water 
Fund  Fund  Total 

Cash received from customers and others $ 2,482,600 $ 2,079,710 $ 4,562,310 

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services  (1,218,122)   (860,236)  (2,078,358) 
Cash payments to employees for services  (1,232,711)  (1,120,155)  (2,352,866) 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  31,767  99,319  131,086 
 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of capital assets  (35,699)  (879,318)  (915,017) 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital related and financing activities  (35,699)  (879,318)  (915,017) 

Cash flows from non-capital related and financing activities: 
Cash received from (paid to) other funds (354,997)  (341,235)  (696,232) 
Taxes, special assessments, and other revenues 40,008  492,421  532,429 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital related and financing activities  (314,989)  151,186  (163,803) 
 

Cash flows from investing activities-interest income  7,568  27,920  35,488 
 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (311,353)  (600,893)  (912,246) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,135,937  5,039,823  9,175,760 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

 
 $ 3,824,584   

$ 4,438,930   
$ 8,263,514 

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION: 

Cash and investments 

 

 
$ 3,773,804 

  

 
$ 4,438,930 

  
 

$ 8,212,734 
Restricted cash and investments 50,780  -  50,780 

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments  $ 3,824,584  $ 4,438,930  $ 8,263,514 
 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
used for operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities: 

 
 
$    198,713 

 
 
78,434  277,147 

Depreciation   104,278  191,694   295,972 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable   (103,941)   (85,687)   (189,628) 

Increase (decrease) in customer deposits    -    (1,522)   (1,522) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities  (143,065)    (1,419)  (144,484) 
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments   43,803    -     43,803 

Decrease in net pension liability, net of deferred outflows and inflows  (68,021)  (82,181)  (150,202) 
 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  $      31,767 $  99,319 $    131,086 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of the County Service Area No. 64, Spring Valley Lake (District) conform 
to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

 
Reporting Entity 

 
The District was established on December 30, 1968 by an act of the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of San Bernardino (the County) to provide sewer and water services. CSA 64 currently 
provides sewer services to approximately 4,200 equivalent dwelling units (EDU’s) and maintains 
3 lift stations. CSA 64 also provides water services to approximately 3,800 customers and maintains 
5 wells, 1 booster station and 3 water tanks. 

 
The District is a component unit of the County. Component units are legally separate organizations 
for which the Board is financially accountable or other organizations whose nature and significant 
relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements 
to be misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting 
majority of the component unit’s board, and either (1) the County has the ability to impose its will 
on the organization, or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide a financial benefit to 
or impose a financial burden on the County. 

 
The accompanying financial statements reflect only the accounts of the County Service Area No. 
64 Spring Valley Lake of the County of San Bernardino and are not intended to present the financial 
position of the County taken as a whole. 

 
Because the District meets the reporting entity criteria established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), the District’s financial statements have also been included in the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County as a “component unit” for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2017. 

 
Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statements presentation 

 

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes 
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been 
met. 
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Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statements presentation (continued) 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the District’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for water 
sales and sanitation services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of salaries 
and benefits, services and supplies, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 

 
The County of San Bernardino Special Districts Department allocates the cost of salaries and 
benefits, compensated absences, administrative services, and management services to the District. 
These costs are presented on the financial statements as professional services, an operating expense. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy 
to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 
The government reports the following types of major funds: 

 
The enterprise fund labeled "Sewer" currently provides sewer services to approximately 4,200 
equivalent dwelling units (EDU’s) and maintains 3 lift stations. 

 
The enterprise fund labeled "Water" currently provides water services to approximately 3,800 
customers and maintains 5 wells, 1 booster station and 3 water tanks. 

 
The County has established a materiality level for recording year-end accruals. For Special Districts 
with appropriations of less than $500,000, individual items of less than $1,000 are not accrued at 
year end. For Special Districts with appropriations over $500,000, individual items of less than 
$5,000 are not accrued at year end. 

 
Financial reporting is based upon all GASB pronouncements including the Codification of 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidelines. 

 
Receivables 

 
No allowance for uncollectibles  was recorded at June 30, 2017 based on 
management’s  expectation that all accounts receivable will be collected through the property 
tax roll. 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Property Taxes 
 

Secured property taxes are levied in two equal installments, November 1 and February 1. They 
become delinquent with penalties on December 10 and April 10, respectively. The lien date is 
January 1 of each year. Unsecured property taxes are due on March 1 and become delinquent with 
penalties on August 31. 

 
Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental column in the 
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with 
an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (for improvements to land and structures and 
equipment) and have an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Structures with an initial cost 
of $100,000 are considered capital assets. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value 
at the date of donation in accordance with GASB Statement No. 72. 

 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially 
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvement are 
capitalized as projects are constructed. Property, plant, and equipment of the government are 
depreciated using straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
  Assets   Years 
Infrastructure 10-100 
Structure and improvements up to 45 
Equipment and vehicles 5-15 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Net Position 
 

Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating and non- operating 
revenues, expenses, and contribution of capital. Net position is classified in the following three 
components: 

 
 Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital 

assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced 
by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
 Restricted – This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net asset 

use through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional 
provision or enabling legislation. 

 
 Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of net position of the District 

that are not restricted for any project or other purpose. 
 

Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
Deferred Outflows/ Inflows of Resources 

 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an outflow or resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 

 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Long-Term Debt and Interest Payable 
 

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the appropriate activities. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported 
net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are immediately expensed 
when incurred in the Government- Wide Financial Statements in addition to the Proprietary and 
Fiduciary Fund Statements in accordance with GASB No. 65. In the Fund Financial Statements, 
with the exception of advances from other funds, long-term liabilities are not presented. 
Consequently, long term debt is shown as a reconciling item in the Reconciliation of the 
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. In the 
Government-Wide Financial Statements, interest payable on long-term debt is recognized as the 
liability is incurred for governmental activities and business-type activities. In the Fund Financial 
Statements, only propriety fund types recognize the interest payable when the liability is incurred. 

 
Net Position Flow Assumption 

 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., 
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to 
report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which 
the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted – net 
position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is applied. 

 
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following categories: 
Net Investment in Capital Assets consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the 
assets. External creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments restrict 
restricted Net position. Unrestricted Net position is all net position that does not meet the definition 
of “net investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position.” 

 
Pensions 

 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the CSA’s 
plan and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on 
the same basis as they are reported by SBCERA. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
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Note 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Cash and investments include balances of monies deposited with the County Treasurer which are 
pooled and invested for the purpose of increasing earnings through investment activities. Interest 
earned on pooled investments is deposited to the CSA’s account based upon the CSA’s average 
daily deposit balance during the allocation period. Cash and investments are shown at the fair value 
as of June 30, 2017. Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as 
investment earnings reported for that fiscal year. Investment earnings reports interest earnings, 
changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation, maturity, or sale of 
investments. The County’s practice is to hold investments until maturity. 

 
Interest income and realized gains and losses earned on pooled investments are deposited quarterly 
to the District’s accounts based upon the District’s average daily deposit balances during the 
quarter. Unrealized gains and losses of the pooled investments are distributed to the District 
annually. Cash and cash equivalents are shown at fair value. As of June 30, 2017, Cash and cash 
equivalents are reported in the District’s financial statement as unrestricted cash of $8,333,592 and 
restricted cash of $50,780 for a total amount of $8,384,372. 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details 
of their investment policy and disclosures related to investment credit risk, concentration of credit 
risk, interest rate risk and custodial credit risk, as required by GASB Statement No. 40, and fair 
value hierarchy disclosures required by GASB Statement No. 72. The County of San Bernardino’s 
CAFR may be obtained from their website http://sbcounty.gov/ATC. 

 
Note 3: RESTRICTED CASH 

 
The District issued bonds under the authority of California Government Code Section 25210.1 to 
finance certain water and sewer improvement. The District reports the bonds according to the 
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Section S40. All the 
District’s bonds matured as of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004. The portion of the matured 
Bonds and interest held by the Auditor-Controller/Treasurer/Tax-Collector of the County of San 
Bernardino amounting to $50,780 is reported as restricted cash as of June 30, 2017. 
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Note 4: CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
Capital asset activity during the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

 
Sewer: 

 
 
 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

 

 
Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions 

 

 
Ending 
Balance 

Land 
Development in progress 

$ 10,000  $ - $ - $ 10,000 
  35,699    4,595    -        40,294 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated   45,699    4,595    -        50,294 
 

Capital assets, being depreciated:    

Improvements to land 4,054,874  - (4,651) 4,050,223 
Structures and improvements 218,810  - - 218,810 
Equipment and vehicles   110,322    -        -        110,322 

Total capital assets, being depreciated   4,384,006    -       (4,651)    4,379,355 
 

Less accumulated depreciation for:    

Improvements to land (3,376,360)  (91,945) 4,400 (3,463,905) 
Structures and improvements (63,617)  (4,862) - (68,479) 
Equipment and vehicles   (50,258)      (7,355)     -        (57,613) 

Total accumulated depreciation   (3,490,235)   (104,162)     4,400   (3,589,997) 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net   893,771   (104,162)     (251)     789,358 

 

Total capital assets, net 
 

$  939,470   

$ (99,567) $  (251) $  839,652 
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Note 4: CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 
 

Water: 
 
 
 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

 

 
Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions 

 

 
Ending 
Balance 

Land 
Development in progress 

$ 71,000  $ - $ - $ 71,000 
  977,033    838,892    -       1,815,925 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated   1,048,033    838,892    -       1,886,925 
 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Improvements to land 

 
 

5,775,230 

  
 

- - 5,775,230 
Structures and improvements 56,290  - - 56,290 
Equipment and vehicles 19,991  - - 19,991 
Utility plant in-service   369,760    -        -        369,760 

Total capital assets, being depreciated   6,221,271    -        -       6,221,271 
 

Less accumulated depreciation for:    

Improvements to land (2,050,341)  (183,477) - (2,233,818) 
Structures and improvements (56,290)  - - (56,290) 
Equipment and vehicles (19,991)  - - (19,991) 
Utility plant in-service   (156,141)      (8,217)     -       (164,358) 

Total accumulated depreciation   (2,282,763)   (191,694)     -       (2,474,457) 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net   3,938,508   (191,694)     -       3,746,814 

 

Total capital assets, net 
 

$ 4,986,541   

$ 647,198 $ - $ 5,633,739 
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Development in progress at June 30, 2017 represents the following projects: 

 
Capital Outlay 

Final Through Remaining   Projected Year 
Budget June 30, 2017Commitment Completion 

 

Archway renovations $ 150,000 $ 49,981 $ 64,241 2018 
Chlorinators 180,000 0 180,000 2019 
Pebble Beach reservoir #1 30,000 94 24,362 2018 
Sewer line replacement 381,116 475 344,942 2019 
Well pump #1 87,150 57,098 29,743 2018 
Well #7 1,985,471 731,719 319,026 2018 
Lakeview lift station      330,000      4,120      325,880 2019 

 

Total $ 3,143,737 $ 843,487   $1,288,194 
 

The District has  entered  into  several  contractual  agreements  for  the development  
and/or improvement of the capital projects listed above. 

 
Note 5: MATURED AND UNREDEEMED BONDS AND INTEREST PAYABLE 

The schedule of changes in short-term debt is as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 
 June 30, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017 
Matured unredeemed bonds $30,000 - - $ 30,000 
Matured interest 20,780   -     -     20,780 

Total short-term debt $ 50,780   -     -   $ 50,780 
 

In 1972,1974,1982, and 1990 the County’s Board of Supervisors approved the issuance of Series 
A, Series B, Series C, and Series D General Obligation Bonds, respectively, to finance the 
acquisition of water and sewer facilities within the County Service Area 64. Authority for the 
issuance of the bonds is provided under the County Service Area Law, Section 2521.1 et seq. of 
the California Government Code. 

 
Series A bonds matured in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, Series B bonds matured in the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2004, Series C Bonds matured in the fiscal year ending June 30, 1997, 
and Series D bonds matured in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2000. At June 30, 2017, the District 
had Matured and Unredeemed Bonds Payable of $30,000 and Interest Payable of $20,780 from the 
Series A, Series C, and Series D issuances. 
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Note 6: WATER REPLACEMENT EXPENDITURES 

 
For purposes of defining and implementing a physical solution to the high desert’s overdraft of the 
Mojave Basin Area, a Watermaster was appointed by Riverside County Superior Court in 1996 to 
oversee the adjudicated area. The District is within a subarea included in the 1996 judgment. If the 
downstream subarea obligation is not met, producers of water in the upstream Mojave Basin Area 
then must provide supplemental water to the downstream subarea. To maintain proper water 
balances within each subarea, the judgment established a Free Production Allowance (FPA) and 
provides for the Court to review as appropriate. All water produced in excess of the FPA must be 
replaced through supplemental water, or by transfer of unused FPA from another producer at a cost 
per acre foot. This action has resulted in quarterly reports that are verified by the Watermaster. This 
action also resulted in makeup and replacement obligations determined annually by the 
Watermaster. All makeup and replacement obligations result in supplemental water purchases from 
the Mojave Water Agency and private Water Purveyors. 

 
Note 7: RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
The Victor Valley Wastewater Reclamation Authority (VVWRA) is a Joint Powers Authority, and 
the District is represented on the VVWRA board by the First Supervisorial District. The District 
collects fees on behalf of VVWRA from new development to connect to the sewer system, and 
pays the VVWRA for sewage treatment fees. For fiscal year 2017, sewage treatment fees incurred 
were $601,619. As of June 30, 2017, $131,641 of treatment fees was due to the VVWRA and was 
recorded as due to other governments on the statement of net position. 

 
Note 8: RETIREMENT PLAN 

 
Plan Description. Employees of the CSA participate in the County of San Bernardino’s (County) 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan (the Plan) administered by the San 
Bernardino County Employee's Retirement Association (SBCERA). The Plan is governed by the 
San Bernardino Board of Retirement (Board) under the California County Employees’ Retirement 
Law of 1937 (CERL) and the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). 
The Plan’s authority to establish and amend the benefit terms are set by the CERL and PEPRA, 
and may be amended by the California state legislature and in some cases, require approval by the 
County of San Bernardino Board of Supervisors and/or the SBCERA Board. SBCERA issues a 
stand-alone financial report, which may be obtained by contacting the Board of Retirement, 348 
W. Hospitality Lane, 3rd Floor, San Bernardino, California 92415-0014. 
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Note 8: RETIREMENT PLAN (continued) 
 
Benefits Provided. SBCERA provides retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits. SBCERA 
administers the Plan which provides benefits for two membership classifications, General and 
Safety, and those benefits are tiered based upon date of SBCERA membership. Safety membership 
is extended to those involved in active law enforcement and fire suppression. All other members, 
including the CSA’s employees, are classified as General members. Generally, those who become 
members prior to January 1, 2013 are Tier 1 members. All other members are Tier 2. An employee 
who is appointed to a regular position, whose service is greater than fifty percent of the full standard 
of hours required are members of SBCERA, and are provided with pension benefits pursuant to 
Plan requirements. 

 
The CERL and PEPRA establish benefit terms. Retirement benefits for the General Tier 1 and 
General Tier 2 Plans are calculated based on age, average final compensation and service credit as 
follows: 

 
  

General – Tier 1 
 

General – Tier 2 

Final Average Compensation Highest 12 months Highest 36 
consecutive months 

Normal Retirement Age Age 55 Age 55 
 

Early Retirement: Years of service 
required and/or eligible for 

Age 70 any years Age 70 any years 
10 years age 50 5 years age 52 
30 years any age N/A 

 
 

Benefit percent per year of service 
for normal retirement age 

2% per year of final 
average 
compensation for 
every year of service 
credit 

At age 67, 2.5% per 
year of final average 
compensation for 
every year of service 
credit 

Benefit Adjustments Reduced before age 
55, increased after 55 
up to age 65 

Reduced before age 
67 

Final Average Compensation 
Limitation 

Internal Revenue 
Code section 
401(a) (17) 

Government Code 
section 7522.10 
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Note 8: RETIREMENT PLAN (continued) 
 
Contributions. Participating employers and active members, including the CSA and the CSA’s 
employees, are required by statute to contribute a percentage of covered salary to the Plan. This 
requirement is pursuant to Government Code sections 31453.5 and 31454, for participating 
employers and Government Code sections 31621.6, 31639.25 and 7522.30 for active members. The 
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the SBCERA Board pursuant to 
Article 1 of the CERL, which is consistent with the Plan’s actuarial funding policy. The 
contribution rates are adopted yearly, based on an annual actuarial valuation, conducted by an 
independent actuary, that requires actuarial assumptions with regard to mortality, expected future 
service (including age at entry into the Plan, if applicable and tier), and compensation increases of 
the members and beneficiaries. The combined active member and employer contribution rates are 
expected to finance the costs of benefits for employees that are allocated during the year, with an 
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Participating employers may pay a 
portion of the active members’ contributions through negotiations and bargaining agreements. 

 
Employee contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 ranged between 7.89% and 
14.22% for Tier 1 General members and between 7.73% and 8.37% for Tier 2 General members. 

 
Employer contribution rates for fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 were 22.33% and 19.2% for Tier 
1 and Tier 2, respectively. 

 
Actuarial Assumptions and Discount Rates 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details 
of actuarial assumptions and discount rates for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense/Benefit, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

 
At June 30, 2017, the CSA reported a liability of $1,688,382 which represents 22.38% of the 
County of San Bernardino Special District's proportionate share of the County's net pension 
liability. The CSA's proportion was allocated based on FY 2017 total salaries and benefits relative 
to the total salaries and benefits of the County of San Bernardino Special Districts as a whole. 

 
The County of San Bernardino Special District's proportionate share of the County's net pension 
liability was based on its contributions to the pension plan relative to the County's contributions for 
FY 2016 as a whole. The County's net pension liability was allocated by SBCERA based on the 
actual employer contributions in each cost group. 

 
The Plan's net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016 based upon the results of an 
actuarial valuation as of the same date. Plan fiduciary net position and the total pension liability 
were valued as of the measurement dates. 
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/Asset to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

 
The following presents the CSA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plan as of 
the measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower 
(6.5 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate: 

 
 

1% Decrease 
(6.5%) 

Current Discount 
Rate (7.5%) 

1% Increase 
(8.5%) 

$ 2 , 8 2 0 , 2 9 5
  

$1,688,382 $ 750,418 

 
Pension benefits recognized amounted to $68,803 for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

 
At June 30, 2017, the CSA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
Deferred Outflows 
  of Resources*   

Deferred Inflows 
   of Resources**   

  $ 833,109   $ (379,410) 
 

* Total deferred outflows include change in assumptions, change in proportion and 
differences between share of contributions, and contributions after measurement date. 

 
* Total deferred inflows include differences in expected and actual expense, and net 
difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments. 

 
The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting from the CSA’s contributions to 
the plan subsequent to the measurement date of $241,345, will be recognized as a reduction of the 
net pension liability in the following year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as 
follows: 

Year Ended June 30, 
2018 $ (12,235) 
2019 $ 47,023 
2020 $ 107,954 
2021 $ 75,238 
2022 $ (5,996) 
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Thereafter $ 370 
Total $ 212,354 
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Note 9: RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The County has self-insurance programs for public liability, property damage, unemployment 
insurance, employee dental insurance, hospital and medical malpractice liability, and workers' 
compensation claims. Public liability claims are self-insured for up to $3.0 million per occurrence. 
Excess insurance coverage over the Self-Insured Retention (SIR) up to $54 million is provided 
through a combination of insurance policies as recommended by Alliant Insurance Services Inc., 
Insurance Broker as follows: Primary Liability coverage $10 million excess of $3.0 million self- 
insured retention with Security National Insurance Company (AM TRUST); Excess Liability 
coverage for $4 million, excess of $13 million with Evanston Insurance Company (Markel); and 
Excess Liability coverage of $15 million, excess of $17 million with National Casualty. Allied 
World Assurance Co. (AWAC) provides excess liability coverage of $25 million, excess of $32 
million. No settlements related to these programs have exceeded insurance coverage in the last 
three years. 

 
The Workers' Compensation program was restructured by joining CSAC-EIA (California State 
Association of Counties – Excess Insurance Authority) Excess Workers’ Compensation Program 
and purchasing a policy with a $2 million SIR and statutory limits with National Union Fire 
Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, PA. Property damage claims are insured on an occurrence basis 
over a $25 thousand deductible, and insured through CSAC-EIA and reinsured with Lexington 
Insurance Co. and with several insurers like AWAC, Ironshore, Partner RE, and Lloyd’s of London, 
among others. 

 
The County supplements its self-insurance for medical malpractice claims with a $25 million policy 
($35 million aggregate) with BETA Risk Management Authority, which provides annual coverage 
on a claim made form basis with a SIR of $1 million for each claim. 

 
All public officials and County employees are insured under a blanket Comprehensive 
Disappearance, Destruction, and Dishonesty policy covering County monies and securities, with 
Berkley Regional Insurance Co. with a $100 thousand deductible, and excess limit up to $10 
million per occurrence. 

 
The activities related to such programs are accounted for in the Risk Management Department’s 
internal service funds (“Funds”), except for unemployment insurance, and employee dental 
insurance, which are accounted for in the General Fund.  The liabilities recorded in these Funds 
are based on the results of actuarial studies and include amounts for allocated and unallocated loss 
adjustment expenses.   The liabilities for these claims are reported using a discounted rate of 
0.615% and an actuarially-determined 80% confidence level. It is the County’s practice to obtain 
actuarial studies on an annual basis. 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details 
of their claims liability in accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, at June 30, 2017. 
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Note 10: CONTINGENCIES 

 
The District is subject to other legal proceedings, claims, and assessments that arise in the ordinary 
course of its business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect 
to these actions will not materially affect the CSA’s financial position, changes in net position 
and cash flows. 

 
Note 11: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 22, 2017, which is the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued, and has determined that there are no 
transactions that will have a significant impact on the CSA. 

 
Note 12: PRIOR-PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

 
The net position as of the beginning of the year was adjusted to correct an error made in recording 
the pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2016. The deferred outflow of resources for 
pension contributions of $260,098 made subsequent to the measurement date was not 
recognized. Had the error not been made, the change in net position would have decreased by 
$260,098. 
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Board of Supervisors 
County of San Bernardino Special 
District County Service Area 
No. 64 – Spring Valley Lake 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of San Bernardino Special District County Service 
Area No. 64 Spring Valley Lake (CSA), a component unit of the County of San Bernardino, as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise CSA's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the minimum 
audit requirements and reporting guidelines for California Special Districts required by the Office of the State 
Controller. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

 
Opinions 

 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of  the  bus ines s -type ac t iv i t ies , e ach  ma jo r  fund  and the  aggrega te  rema in ing  
fund  
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information of the County of San Bernardino Special District County Service Area No. 64, as of June 30, 
 
 
2016, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as 
well as accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special 
districts. 

 

 
438 Old Newport Blvd, Newport Beach, CA 92663 

Phone (949) 346-2900 – Fax (714) 901-0024 – www.gruber-inc.com 
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Board of Supervisors 
County of San Bernardino Special 

District County Service Area No. 64 
– Spring Valley Lake Page Two 

 

 
 
 

Emphasis of Matter 
 

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2016, the CSA implemented 
GASB Nos. 72, 73, and 79. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

 
Other Matters 

 
Required Supplementary Information 

 
Management has omitted Management's Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements 
is not affected by this missing information. 

 

 
David L. Gruber and Associates, Inc. 
David L.  Gruber and Associates, Inc. 

 

Newport Beach, California 
November 28, 2016 
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Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds June 

30, 2016 
 

 
 

Assets:

Enterprise Funds 
Sewer Water Total 

Cash and investments (note 2) $ 3,773,804 $ 4,438,930 $ 8,212,734 

Restricted Cash and investments (notes 2 and 3) 50,780 - 50,780 
Accounts receivable 349,197 292,552 641,749 
Taxes receivable - 11,047 11,047 
Special assessment receivable 1,070 493 1,563 
Due from other governments  -  -  - 
Due from County of San Bernardino  -  -  - 
Due from other funds  -  -  - 
Interest receivable 65,860 49,435 115,295 
Capital assets (note 4): 

Capital assets not being depreciated 45,699 1,048,033 1,093,732 
Capital assets being depreciated, 

net of accumulated depreciation    893,772      3,938,508       4,832,280   
Total assets   5,180,182        9,778,998        14,959,180   

 
Deferred outflows of resources 

Pension   83,524        76,998        160,522   
 

Liabilities: 
Current: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - 27,468 27,468 
Matured unredeemed bonds payable 30,000 - 30,000 
Interest payable on matured unredeemed bonds 20,780 - 20,780 
Due to other governments 43,803 - 43,803 
Due to other funds 121 19,419 19,540 
Customer Deposits - 11,622 11,622 

Long-term: 
Net pension liability   664,566      612,642      1,277,208   

Total liabilities   759,270      671,151      1,430,421   
 
Deferred inflows of resources 

Pension   232,533      214,365      446,898   
 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 

 
 

939,471 

  
 

4,986,541 

  
 

5,926,012 
Unrestricted   3,332,432      3,983,939      7,316,371   

 

Total net position 
 

  $  4,271,903   
 

 
 

$ 8,970,480  
 

$ 13,242,383 
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See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
Year ended June 30, 2016 

 
 
 
 

Operating Revenues:

Enterprise Funds 
Sewer  Water  Total 

Sanitation services $  2,497,245  $ -  $  2,497,245 

Water sales  -  2,095,658  2,095,658 
Connection fees  53,793  20,687  74,480 
Permit and inspection fees  1,200  2,550  3,750 
Penalties  33,679  29,908  63,587 
Other services  624  16,594  17,218 

 
Total operating revenues  2,586,541  2,165,397  4,751,938 

 
Operating Expenses: 

Professional services  1,164,690  1,037,974  2,202,664 
Services and supplies  1,106,949  577,926  1,684,875 
Water replacement (note 7)  -  137,340  137,340 
Utilities  11,911  142,029  153,940 
Depreciation  104,278  191,694  295,972 

 
Total operating expenses  2,387,828  2,086,963  4,474,791 
Operating income (loss)  198,713  78,434  277,147 

 
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Property taxes  285  414,028  414,313 
Special assessment and other taxes  23,102  23,859  46,961 
State aid   -   -   - 
Investment earnings  31,664  36,857  68,521 
Transfers in  -  -  - 
Transfers outs   -   -   - 
Other revenues (expenses)  16,623  55,176  71,799 

 
Total nonoperating revenues  71,674  529,920  601,594 

Change in net position  270,387  608,354  878,741 
Net position at beginning of year  4,001,516  8,362,126  12,363,642 

 
Net position at end of year $  4,271,903  $ 8,970,480  $ 13,242,383 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

Year ended June 30, 2016 
 
 

 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Sewer  Water 
Fund  Fund  Total 

Cash received from customers and others $  2,482,600 $  2,079,710 $  4,562,310 

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services  (1,218,122)   (860,236)  (2,078,358) 
Cash payments to employees for services  (1,232,711)  (1,120,155)  (2,352,866) 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  31,767  99,319  131,086 
 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of capital assets  (35,699)  (879,318)  (915,017) 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital related and financing activities  (35,699)  (879,318)  (915,017) 
 

Cash flows from non-capital related and financing activities: 
Cash received from (paid to) other funds (354,997)  (341,235)  (696,232) 
Taxes, special assessments, and other revenues 40,008  492,421  532,429 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital related and financing activities  (314,989)  151,186  (163,803) 
 

Cash flows from investing activities-interest income  7,568  27,920  35,488 
 

 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

 
(311,353) 

  
(600,893) 

  
(912,246) 

 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
 

4,135,937  
 

5,039,823  
 

9,175,760 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

 
$  3,824,584 

  
$  4,438,930 

  
$  8,263,514 

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION: 

     

Cash and investments $  3,773,804  $  4,438,930  $  8,212,734 
Restricted cash and investments 50,780  -  50,780 

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $  3,824,584  $  4,438,930  $  8,263,514 
 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
used for operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities: 

 

 
$  198,713 

 

 
78,434  277,147 

Depreciation 104,278  191,694  295,972 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (103,941)  (85,687)  (189,628) 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits -  (1,522)  (1,522) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities (143,065)  (1,419)  (144,484) 
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments 43,803  -  43,803 
Decrease in net pension liability, net of deferred outflows and inflows (68,021)  (82,181)  (150,202) 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $  31,767  $ 99,319  $ 131,086 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
The accounting policies of the County Service Area No. 64, Spring Valley Lake (District) conform to 
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles. 

 
Reporting Entity 

 
The District was established on December 30, 1968 by an act of the Board of Supervisors of the County 
of San Bernardino (the County) to provide sewer and water services. CSA 64 currently provides sewer 
services to approximately 4,200 equivalent dwelling units (EDU’s) and maintains 3 lift stations. CSA 64 
also provides water services to approximately 3,800 customers and maintains 5 wells, 1 booster station 
and 3 water tanks. 

 
The District is a component unit of the County. Component units are legally separate organizations for 
which t h e  B o a r d  i s  f i n a n c i a l l y  a cc o u n t ab l e  o r  o t h e r  o r g a n i z a t i o n s  w h o s e  n a t u r e  a n d  
s i g n i f i c a n t  relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the County’s financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a 
voting majority of the component unit’s board, and either (1) the County can impose its will on the 
organization, or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or impose a 
financial burden on the County. 

 
The accompanying financial statements reflect only the accounts of the County Service Area No. 64 – 
Spring Valley Lake of the County of San Bernardino and are not intended to present the financial position 
of the County taken as a whole. 

 
Because the District meets the reporting entity criteria established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards   Board (GASB), the D i s t r i c t ’ s    financial s t a t e m e n t s    have   also   been   included   in   
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County as a “component unit” for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2016. 

 

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statements presentation 
 

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
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connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the District’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for water sales and sanitation services. Operating 
expenses f o r  e n t e r p r i s e  f u n d s  i n c l u d e  t h e  c o s t  o f  s a l a r i e s  a n d  b e n e f i t s , s e r v i c e s  
a n d  s u p p l i e s , administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting these definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

 
 
Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUTNING POLICIES (continued) 
 
The Department of Special Districts allocates the cost of salaries and benefits, compensated absences, 
administrative services, and management services to the District.  These costs are presented on the 
financial statements as professional services, an operating expense. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 
The government reports the following types of major funds: 

 
The enterprise fund labeled "Sewer" currently provides sewer services to approximately 4,200 equivalent 
dwelling units (EDU’s) and maintains 3 lift stations. 

 
The enterprise fund labeled "Water" currently provides water services to approximately 3,800 customers 
and maintains 5 wells, 1 booster station and 3 water tanks. 

 

Financial reporting is based upon all GASB pronouncements including the Codification of 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidelines. 

 

 
Receivables 

 
The District sends any delinquent accounts receivable to property tax to be included on the customer’s 
property tax bills, hence, an allowance for doubtful accounts were $0 were recorded for both the sewer 
and water fund which was determined by management to be sufficient. As of June 30, 2016, accounts 
receivable were $349,197 for the sewer function and $292,552 for the water function. 

 

Property Taxes 
 

Secured property taxes are levied in two equal installments, November 1 and February 1. They become 
delinquent with penalties on December 10 and April 10, respectively. The lien date is January 1 of each 
year. Unsecured property taxes are due on March 1 and become delinquent with penalties on August 31. 

 
Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
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sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental column in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost 
of more than $5,000 (for improvements to land and structures and equipment) and have an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year. Structures with an initial cost of $100,000 are considered capital assets. 
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation in accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 72. 

 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend 
assets’ lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvement are capitalized as projects 
are constructed. Property, plant, and equipment of the government are depreciated using straight- line method 
over the following estimated useful lives: 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
  Assets   Years 

 

Infrastructure 10-100 
Structure and improvements up to 45 
Equipment and vehicles 5-15 

 

Net Position 
 

Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating and non-operating revenues, expenses, and 
contribution of capital. Net position is classified in the following three components: 

 
• Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, 

including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable 
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
• Restricted – This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net asset use 

through e x t e r n a l  c o n s t r a i n t s  i m p o s e d  b y  c r e d i t o r s , g r a n t o r s , 
c o n t r i b u t i o n s , o r  l a w s  o r  regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by 
law through constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

 
• Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of net position of the District that are 

not restricted for any project or other purpose. 
 
Use of Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 

Deferred Outflows/ Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents 
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow 
or resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 

 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item, which arises 
only under  a  mod i f i ed  acc rua l  bas i s  o f  ac cou n t i n g  t ha t  qua l i f i es  fo r  repor t ing  i n  t h i s  
ca tegory. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds of 
the balance sheet. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that 
the amounts become available. 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
Long-Term Debt and Interest Payable 

 

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the appropriate activities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance 
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds 
payable a r e  r epor t ed  ne t  o f  t h e  appl icable  bond  p remiu m o r  d i s co u n t .  Bond i s s u a n ce  
cos t s  a r e  immediately expensed in the Government- Wide Financial Statements in addition to the 
Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Statements in accordance with GASB No. 65. In the Fund Financial 
Statements, except for advances from other funds, long-term liabilities are not presented. Consequently, long 
term debt is shown as a reconciling item in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to 
the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, interest 
payable on long-term debt is recognized as the liability is incurred for governmental activities and 
business-type activities. In the Fund Financial Statements, only propriety fund types recognize the interest 
payable when the liability is incurred. 

 
Net Position Flow Assumption 

 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or 
grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources.  To calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net position 
and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow 
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the 
government’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net 
position is applied. 

 
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following categories: Net 
Investment in Capital Assets consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by 
outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets. External 
creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments restrict restricted Net position. 
Unrestricted Net position is all net position that do not meet the definition of “invested in capital assets, net 
of related debt” or “restricted net position.” 

 
Pensions 

 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the CSA’s San Bernardino 
County Employee's Retirement Association (SBCERA) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SBCERA. 
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

New Accounting Pronouncements 
 

The District adopted Statement on Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 72, Fair 
Value Measurement, and Application, GASB Statement No. 73 Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and Related Assets that are not within the Scope of GASB 68, and GASB Statement No. 79 
Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants. 
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Note 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Cash, cash equivalents, and investments include balances of monies deposited with the County Treasurer 
which are pooled and invested for the purpose of increasing earnings through investment activities. 
Interest earned on pooled investments is deposited to the CSA’s account based upon the CSA’s average 
daily deposit balance during the allocation period. Cash, cash equivalents, and investments are shown at 
the fair value as of June 30, 2016. Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as 
investment earnings reported for that fiscal year. Investment earnings reports interest earnings, changes in 
fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation, maturity, or sale of investments. The 
County’s practice is to hold investments until maturity. 

 
Interest income and realized gains and losses earned on pooled investments are deposited quarterly to the 
District’s accounts based upon the District’s average daily deposit balances during the quarter. Unrealized 
gains and losses of the pooled investments are distributed to the District annually. Cash and cash equivalents 
are shown at fair value. As of June 30, 2016, Cash and cash equivalents are reported in the District’s financial 
statement as unrestricted cash of $8,212,734 and restricted cash of $50,780 for a total amount of $8,263,514. 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details of their 
investment policy and disclosures related to investment credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest 
rate risk and custodial credit risk, as required by GASB Statement No. 40, and fair value hierarchy 
disclosures required by GASB Statement No. 72. 

 

 
Note 3: RESTRICTED CASH 

 
The District issued bonds under the authority of California Government Code Section 25210.1 to finance 
certain water and sewer improvement. The District reports the bonds according to the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Section S40. All the District’s bonds matured as 
of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004. The portion of the matured Bonds and interest held by the 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer/Tax-Collector of the County of San Bernardino amounting to $50,780 is 
reported as restricted cash as of June 30, 2016. 
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Note 4: CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity during the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows: 
Sewer: 

 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

 
Balance Balance 

July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 

Land $ 10,000 - - 10,000 
Construction in process   -   35,699   -   35,699 

Total capital assets not being depreciated   10,000   35,699   -   45,699 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Land improvements 4,019,471 35,404 - 4,054,875 
Structures and improvements 218,810 - - 218,810 
Infrastructure 35,404 - (35,404) - 
Equipment and vehicles   110,322   -   -   110,322 

Total capital assets being depreciated     4,3484,007   35,404   (35,404)   4,384,007 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Land improvements (3,278,595) (97,765) - (3,376,360) 
Structures and improvements (58,755) (4,862) - (63,617) 
Infrastructure (5,704) - 5,704 - 
Equipment and vehicles   (42,903)   (7,355)   -   (50,258) 

Total accumulated depreciation     (3,385,957)   (109,982)   5,704   (3,490,235) 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net   998,050   (74,578)   (29,700)   893,772 
Total capital assets, net  $   1,008,050   (38,879)   (29,700)   939,471 

 

Water: 
 
 
 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

 
Balance Balance 

July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 

Land $ 71,000 - - 71,000 
 

Construction in process   97,715   889,885   (10,567)   977,033 
 

Total capital assets not being depreciated   168,715   889,885   (10,567)   1,048,033 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Land improvements 5,775,230 - - 5,775,230 
Structures and improvements 56,290 - - 56,290 
Equipment and vehicles 19,991 - - 19,991 

Utility plant in service   369,760   -   -   369,760 

Total capital assets being depreciated       6,221,271   -   -   6,221,271 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements (1,866,864) (183,477) - (2,050,341) 
Structures and improvements (56,290) - - (56,290) 
Equipment and vehicles (19,991) - - (19,991) 

Utility plant in service   (147,924)   (8,217)   -   (156,141) 

Total accumulated depreciation     (2,091,069)   (191,694)   -   (2,282,763) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net   4,130,202   (191,694)   -   3,938,508 

Total capital assets, net  $   4,298,917   698,191   (10,567)   4,986,541 
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Note 4: CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

 
Construction in Progress 

 
Construction in progress at June 30, 2016 represents the following projects: 

 
Capital Outlay 

Final Through Remaining   Projected Year 
Budget  June 30, 2016 Commitment Completion 

 
 

Archway Renovations 150,000 35,778 114,222 2017 
Chlorinators $ 180,000 0 180,000 2018 
Pebble Beach Reservoir #1 30,000 5,544 24,456 2017 
Sewer Line Replacement 381,116 35,697 345,419 2017 
Well Pump #1 87,150 309 86,841 2017 
Well #7 1,552,768 848,254 704,514 2017 

 

Total $ 2,381,034     925,582    1,455,452 
 

The District has entered into several contractual agreements for the development and/or improvement of 
the capital projects listed above. 

Note 5: MATURED AND UNREDEEMED BONDS AND INTEREST PAYABLE 

The schedule of changes in short-term debt is as follows: 
Balance at   Balance at 

June 30, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 
 

Matured unredeemed bonds $30,000 - - 30,000 
Matured interest 20,780   -     -     20,780 

`     
Total capital assets being depreciated $ 50,780   -     -      50,780 

 

In 1972,1974,1982, and 1990 the County’s Board of Supervisors approved the issuance of Series A, 
Series B, Series C, and Series D General Obligation Bonds, respectively, to finance the acquisition of 
water and sewer facilities within the County Service Area 64. Authority for the issuance of the bonds is 
provided under the County Service Area Law, Section 2521.1 et seq. of the California Government Code. 

 
Series A bonds matured in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, Series B bonds matured in the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2004, Series C Bonds matured in the fiscal year ending June 30, 1997, and Series D 
bonds matured in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2000. At June 30, 2016, the District had Matured and 
Unredeemed Bonds Payable of $30,000 and Interest Payable of $20,780 from the Series A, Series C, and 
Series D issuances. 
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Note 6: PROPOSITION 111 APPROPRIATION LIMITS 

 
Proposition 111, which added Article XIIIB to the State Constitution, established limits on budget 
appropriations in order to restrict government spending. Management has reviewed the proceeds of taxes 
received by the District during the 2015-16 fiscal year and believes the revenue to be in accordance with 
the guidelines established by Proposition 111. 
Note 7: WATER REPLACEMENT EXPENDITURES 

 
For purposes of defining and implementing a physical solution to the high desert’s overdraft of the 
Mojave Basin Area, a Watermaster was appointed by Riverside County Superior Court in 1996 to oversee 
the adjudicated area. The District is within a subarea included in the 1996 judgment. If the downstream 
subarea obligation is not met, producers of water in the upstream Mojave Basin Area then must provide 
supplemental water to the downstream subarea. To maintain proper water balances within each subarea, 
the judgment established a Free Production Allowance (FPA) and provides for the Court to review as 
appropriate. All water produced in excess of the FPA must be replaced through supplemental water, or by 
transfer of unused FPA from another producer at a cost per acre foot. This action has resulted in quarterly 
reports that are verified by the Watermaster. This action also resulted in makeup and replacement obligations 
determined annually by the Watermaster. All makeup and replacement obligations result in supplemental 
water purchases from the Mojave Water Agency and private Water Purveyors. 

 
Note 8: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
The Victor Valley Wastewater Reclamation Authority (VVWRA) is a Joint Powers Authority, and the 
District is represented on the VVWRA board by the First Supervisorial District. The District collects fees 
on behalf of VVWRA from new development to connect to the sewer system, and pays the VVWRA for 
sewage treatment fees. For fiscal year 2016, sewage treatment fees incurred were $596,046. As of June 
30, 2016, $43,803 of treatment fees was due to the VVWRA and was recorded as due to other governments 
on the statement of net position. 

 
Note 9: RETIREMENT PLAN 

 
Plan Description. Employees of the CSA participate in the County of San Bernardino’s (County) cost- 
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan (the Plan) administered by the San Bernardino 
County Employee's Retirement Association (SBCERA). The Plan is governed by the San Bernardino 
Board of Retirement (Board) under the California County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL) and 
the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). The Plan’s authority to establish 
and amend the benefit terms are set by the CERL and PEPRA, and may be amended by the California 
state legislature and in some cases, require approval by the County of San Bernardino Board of Supervisors 
and/or the SBCERA Board. SBCERA issues a stand-alone financial report, which may be obtained by 
contacting the Board of Retirement, 348 W. Hospitality Lane, 3rd Floor, San Bernardino, California 
92415-0014. 

 
Benefits Provided. SBCERA provides retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits. SBCERA 
administers the Plan which provides benefits for two membership classifications, General and Safety, and 
those benefits are tiered based upon date of SBCERA membership. Safety membership is extended to 

LAFCO 3233

Attachment I



those involved in active law enforcement and fire suppression. All other members, including the CSA’s 
employees, are classified as General members. Generally, those who become members prior to January 1, 
 
Note 9: RETIREMENT PLAN (continued) 
 
2013 are Tier 1 members. All other members are Tier 2. An employee who is appointed to a regular position, 
whose service is greater than fifty percent of the full standard of hours required are members of SBCERA, 
and are provided with pension benefits pursuant to Plan requirements. 

 
The CERL and PEPRA establish benefit terms. Retirement benefits for the General Tier 1 and General 
Tier 2 Plans are calculated based on age, average final compensation and service credit as follows: 

 
 

 
 

General – Tier 1 
 

General – Tier 2 
Final Average Compensation Highest 12 months Highest 36 

consecutive months 
Normal Retirement Age Age 55 Age 55 

 

Early   Retirement:   Years   of   service 
required and/or eligible for 

Age 70 any years Age 70 any years 
10 years age 50 5 years age 52 
30 years any age N/A 

 
 
Benefit percent per year of service for 
normal retirement age 

2% per year of final 
average compensation 
for every year of service 
credit 

At age 67, 2.5% per 
year of final average 
compensation   for 
every year of service 
credit 

Benefit Adjustments Reduced   before   age 
55, increased after 55 
up to age 65 

Reduced before age 67 

Final Average Compensation 
Limitation 

Internal Revenue Code 
section 401(a) (17) 

Government Code 
section 7522.10 

 

Contributions.  Participating e m p l o y e r s  a n d  a c t i v e  m e m b e r s , i n c l u d i n g  t h e  C S A  a n d  
t h e  C S A ’ s  employees, are required by statute to contribute a percentage of covered salary to the Plan. 
This requirement is pursuant to Government Code sections 31453.5 and 31454, for participating 
employers and Government Code sections 31621.6, 31639.25 and 7522.30 for active members. The 
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the SBCERA Board pursuant to Article 
1 of the CERL, which is consistent with the Plan’s actuarial funding policy. The contribution rates are 
adopted yearly, based on an annual actuarial valuation, conducted by an independent actuary, that 
requires actuarial assumptions about mortality, expected future service (including age at entry into the 
Plan, if applicable and tier), and compensation increases of the members and beneficiaries. The combined 
active member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits for employees 
that are allocated during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
Participating employers may pay a portion of the active members’ contributions through negotiations and 
bargaining agreements. 

 
Employee contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 ranged between 7.81% and 14.21% 
for Tier 1 General members and between 7.70% and 8.40% for Tier 2 General members.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

 
Note 9: RETIREMENT PLAN (continued) 
 
At June 30, 2016, the District’s reported a liability of $1,277,208 for its proportionate share of the 
County’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date. The District’s proportion of the County’s net pension liability was based on the District’s FY 
2015 actual contributions to the County’s pension plan relative to the total contributions of the County as 
a whole. 
 
At June 30, 2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows 
  of Resources *   

Deferred Inflows 
  of Resources **   

 
$ 160,522 $ (446,898) 

 

*  Total deferred outflows include change in assumptions, and change in proportion 
and differences between share of contributions. 

 

* Total deferred inflows include differences in expected and actual expense, and net difference 
between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments. 

 
The $160,522 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting from the District’s 
contributions to the County’s plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details of their 
pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, actuarial 
assumptions, and discount rates, for the current year and two preceding years computed in accordance with 
GASB 68, Accounting and Reporting for Pension Plans, for the year ended June 30, 
2016. 

 

 
Note 10: FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS 

 
From time to time the District may receive funds from various Federal and State agencies. The grant 
programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which is to ensure 
compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any disallowed claims, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures 
which may be disallowed by the grantors cannot be determined at this time, although the CSA expects 
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
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Note 11: RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The County has self-insurance programs for public liability, property damage, unemployment insurance, 
employee dental insurance, hospital and medical malpractice liability, and workers' compensation claims. 
Note 11: RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
Public liability claims are self-insured for up to $3.0 million per occurrence. Excess insurance coverage over  
the Self-Insured Retention (SIR) up to $54 million is provided through a combination of insurance policies  
as  recommended  by  Alliant  Insurance  Services  Inc.,  Insurance  Broker  as  follows:  Primary Liability 
coverage $10 million excess of $3.0 million self-insured retention with Security National Insurance 
Company (AM TRUST); Excess Liability coverage for $4 million, excess of $13 million with Evanston 
Insurance Company (Markel); and Excess Liability coverage of $15 million, excess of $17 million with 
National Casualty. Allied World Assurance Co. (AWAC) provides excess liability coverage of $25 million, 
excess of $32 million. No settlements related to these programs have exceeded insurance coverage in the 
last three years. 
 
The  Workers'  Compensation  program  was  restructured  by  joining  CSAC-EIA  (California  State 
Association of Counties – Excess Insurance Authority) Excess Workers’ Compensation Program and 
purchasing a policy with a $2 million SIR and statutory limits with National Union Fire Insurance Company 
of Pittsburgh, PA. Property damage claims are insured on an occurrence basis over a $25 thousand 
deductible, and insured through CSAC-EIA and reinsured with Lexington Insurance Co. and with several 
insurers like AWAC, Ironshore, Partner RE, and Lloyd’s of London, among others. 

 
The County supplements its self-insurance for medical malpractice claims with a $25 million policy ($35 
million aggregate) with BETA Risk Management Authority, which provides annual coverage on a claim 
made form basis with a SIR of $1 million for each claim. 

 
All public officials and County employees are insured under a blanket Comprehensive Disappearance, 
Destruction, and Dishonesty policy covering County monies and securities, with Berkley Regional Insurance 
Co. with a $100 thousand deductible, and excess limit up to $10 million per occurrence. 

 
The activities related to such programs are accounted for in the Risk Management Department’s internal 
service funds (“Funds”), except for unemployment insurance, and employee dental insurance, which are 
accounted for in the General Fund.   The liabilities recorded in these Funds are based on the results of 
actuarial studies and include amounts for allocated and unallocated loss adjustment expenses.   The liabilities 
for these claims are reported using a discounted rate of 0.615% and an actuarially-determined 
80% confidence level. It is the County’s practice to obtain actuarial studies on an annual basis. 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details of their 
claims liability in accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk 
Financing and Related Insurance Issues, at June 30, 2016. 
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Note 12: CONTINGENCIES 
 

The District is subject to other legal proceedings, claims, and assessments that arise in the ordinary course 
of its business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these 
actions will not materially affect MHAIA’s financial position, changes in net position and cash flows. 

 

 
Note 13: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 28, 2016, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued, and has determined that there are no transactions that will have a 
significant impact on the CSA. 
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Board of Supervisors 
County of San Bernardino Special 
District County Service Area 
No. 64 – Spring Valley Lake 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of San Bernardino Special District County Service 
Area No. 64 Spring Valley Lake (CSA), a component unit of the County of San Bernardino, as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise CSA's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the minimum 
audit requirements and reporting guidelines for California Special Districts required by the Office of the State 
Controller. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

 
Opinions 

 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial pos i t ion  of  the  bus ines s -type ac t ivi t ies , each  ma jor  fund  and  the  agg rega te  
remain ing  fund  information of the County of San Bernardino Special District County Service Area No. 
64, as of June 30,
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2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof f o r  the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as 
well as accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special 
districts. 

 

 
15151 Springdale – Huntington Beach, CA 92649 

Phone (949) 346-2900 – Fax (714) 901-0024 – www.gruber-inc.com 

LAFCO 3233

Attachment I

http://www.gruber-inc.com/


Board of Supervisors 
County of San Bernardino Special 

District County Service Area No. 64 
– Spring Valley Lake Page Two 

 

 
 
 
Emphasis of Matter 

 
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2014, the CSA implemented 
GASB No. 68, 69 and 71. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

 
Other Matters 

 
Required Supplementary Information 

 
Management has omitted Management's Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements 
is not affected by this missing information. 

 

 
David L. Gruber and Associates, Inc. 

 

David L.  Gruber and Associates, Inc. 
 

Huntington Beach, California 
December 2, 2015 
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Pension 
 
Liabilities: 

  110,800      104,590      215,390   

Current: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

 
143,065 

  
28,887 

  
171,952 

Matured unredeemed bonds payable 30,000  -  30,000 
Interest payable on matured unredeemed bonds 20,780  -  20,780 
Due to other funds 355,118  360,654  715,772 
Customer Deposits -  13,144  13,144 

 

Net pension liability 
 

  624,477    
 

  589,480    
 

  1,213,957   
Total liabilities   1,173,440      992,165      2,165,605   

 
Deferred inflows of resources 

Pension 

 

 
 
  367,919   

 
 

 
 
  347,300   

 
 

 
 
  715,219   

 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 

 
 

1,008,050 

  
 

4,298,917 

  
 

5,306,967 
Unrestricted   2,993,466      4,063,209      7,056,675   

 

Total net position 
 

  $  4,001,516    
 

$ 8,362,126  
 

$ 12,363,642 
 

 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds June 
30, 2015 

 

 
 

 
 

Assets: 

Enterprise Funds 
Sewer Water Total 

Cash and investments (note 2) $ 4,085,157 $ 5,039,823 $ 9,124,980 

Restricted Cash and investments (notes 2 and 3) 50,780 - 50,780 
Accounts receivable 245,256 206,865 452,121 
Taxes receivable - 9,866 9,866 
Special assessment receivable 1,068 1,032 2,100 
Interest receivable 41,764 40,498 82,262 
Capital assets (note 4): 

Capital assets not being depreciated 10,000 168,715 178,715 
Capital assets being depreciated, 

net of accumulated depreciation    998,050      4,130,202       5,128,252   
Total assets   5,432,075        9,597,001        15,029,076   

 
Deferred outflows of resources 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Long-term: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

Year ended June 30, 2015 
 
 
 

Operating Revenues: 

Enterprise Funds 
Sewer  Water  Total 

Sanitation services $  2,223,664  $ 4  $  2,223,668 

Water sales  -  2,061,518  2,061,518 
Connection fees 20,088 17,803 37,891 
Permit and inspection fees 825 1,800 2,625 
Penalties 34,908 28,890 63,798 
Other services 76 22,782   22,858   

 

Total operating revenues 2,279,561 2,132,797     4,412,358   
 

Operating Expenses: 
Professional services 1,003,608 925,237 1,928,845 
Services and supplies 1,103,829 605,396 1,709,225 
Water replacement (note 7) - 369,310 369,310 
Utilities 8,274 172,004 180,278 
Depreciation  104,280  176,376  280,656 

 
Total operating expenses 

 
2,219,991 

 
2,248,323 

 
4,468,314 

 

Operating income (loss) 
 

59,570 
 

(115,526) 
 

(55,956) 
 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Property taxes 

 
 

173,090 

 
 

223,783 

 
 

396,873 
Special assessment and other taxes 23,773 28,252 52,025 
Investment earnings 15,263 20,952 36,215 
Other revenues (expenses) 15,861 56,968 72,829 

 
Total nonoperating revenues 

 
227,987 

 
329,955 

 
557,942 

 

Change in net position 
 

287,557 
 

214,429 
 

501,986 
 

Net position at beginning of year, as restated (noted 13) 
 

3,713,959 
 

8,147,697 
 

11,861,656 
 

Net position at end of year 
 

$  4,001,516 
 

$  8,362,126 
 
$  12,363,642 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

Year ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Sewer  Water 
Fund  Fund  Total 

Cash received from customers and others $  2,331,550 $  2,265,563 $  4,597,113 

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services  (1,028,421)  (1,141,509)  (2,169,930) 
Cash payments to employees for services  (1,077,877)   (995,344)  (2,073,221) 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  225,252  128,710  353,962 
 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Disposition of capital assets  -  (281,072)  (281,072) 

 

Net cash (used for) capital related and financing 
activities  -  (281,072)  (281,072) 

 
Cash flows from non-capital related and financing activities: 

Cash received from (paid to) other funds 354,359  364,290  718,649 
Taxes, special assessments, and other revenues 213,056  310,781  523,837 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital related and financing activities  567,415  675,071  1,242,486 
 

Cash flows from investing activities-interest income  19,800  32,053  51,853 
 

 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

 
812,467 

  
554,762 

  
1,367,229 

 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
 

3,323,470  
 

4,485,061  
 

7,808,531 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

 
$  4,135,937 

  
$  5,039,823 

  
$  9,175,760 

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION: 

     

Cash and investments $  4,085,157  $  5,039,823  $  9,124,980 
Restricted cash and investments 50,780  -  50,780 

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $  4,135,937  $  5,039,823  $  9,175,760 
 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
used for operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities: 

 

 
$  59,570 

 

 
(115,526)  (55,956) 

Depreciation 104,280  176,376  280,656 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 51,989  132,766  184,755 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities 143,065  (7,943)  135,122 
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments (59,383)  13,144  (46,239) 
Decrease in net pension liability, net of deferred outflows and inflows (74,269)  (70,107)  (144,376) 

 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $  225,252  $ 128,710  $ 353,962 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
The accounting policies of the County Service Area No. 64, Spring Valley Lake (District) conform to 
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles. 

 
Reporting Entity 

 

The District was established on December 30, 1968 by an act of the Board of Supervisors of the County 
of San Bernardino (the County) to provide sewer and water services. CSA 64 currently provides sewer 
services to approximately 4,200 equivalent dwelling units (EDU’s) and maintains 3 lift stations. CSA 64 
also provides water services to approximately 3,800 customers and maintains 5 wells, 1 booster station 
and 3 water tanks. 

 
The District is a component unit of the County. Component units are legally separate organizations for 
which t h e  B o a r d  i s  f i n a n c i a l l y  a c c o u n t a b l e  o r  o t h e r  o r g a n i z a t i o n s  w h o s e  n a t u r e  a n d  
s i g n i f i c a n t  relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the County’s financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting 
majority of the component unit’s board, and either (1) the County can impose its will on the organization, 
or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden 
on the County. 

 
The accompanying financial statements reflect only the accounts of the County Service Area No. 64 – 
Spring Valley Lake of the County of San Bernardino and are not intended to present the financial position 
of the County taken as a whole. 

 
Because the District meets the reporting entity criteria established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards   Board (GASB), the   District’s   financial   statements   have   also   been   included   in   the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County as a “component unit” for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2015. 

 
Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statements presentation 

 

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the District’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for water sales and sanitation services. Operating 
expenses f o r  e n t e r p r i s e  f u n d s  i n c l u d e  t h e  c o s t  o f  s a l a r i e s  a n d  b e n e f i t s , s e r v i c e s  
a n d  s u p p l i e s , administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting these definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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The Department of Special Districts allocates the cost of salaries and benefits, compensated absences, 
administrative services, and management services to the District.  These costs are presented on the 
financial statements as professional services, an operating expense. 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUTNING POLICIES (continued) 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 
The government reports the following types of major funds: 

 
The enterprise fund labeled "Sewer" currently provides sewer services to approximately 4,200 equivalent 
dwelling units (EDU’s) and maintains 3 lift stations. 

 
The enterprise fund labeled "Water" currently provides water services to approximately 3,800 customers 
and maintains 5 wells, 1 booster station and 3 water tanks. 

 

Financial reporting is based upon all GASB pronouncements including the Codification of 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidelines. 

 

 
Receivables 

 

The District sends any delinquent accounts receivable to property tax to be included on the customer’s 
property tax bills, hence, an allowance for doubtful accounts were $0 were recorded for both the sewer 
and water fund which was determined by management to be sufficient. As of June 30, 2014, accounts 
receivable were $297,245 for the sewer function and $339,631 for the water function. 

 
Property Taxes 

 

Secured property taxes are levied in two equal installments, November 1 and February 1. They become 
delinquent with penalties on December 10 and April 10, respectively. The lien date is January 1 of each 
year. Unsecured property taxes are due on March 1 and become delinquent with penalties on August 31. 

 
Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental column in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost 
of more than $5,000 (for improvements to land and structures and equipment) and have an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year. Structures with an initial cost of $100,000 are considered capital assets. 
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at estimated reasonable value at the date of donation. 

 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend 
assets’ lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvement are capitalized as projects 
are constructed. Property, plant, and equipment of the government are depreciated using straight- line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

  Assets   Years 
 

Infrastructure 10-100 
Structure and improvements up to 45 
Equipment and vehicles 5-15 

 
New Accounting Pronouncements 

 

The District adopted Statement on Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, GASB Statement No. 69 Government Combinations and 
Disposals of Government Operations, and GASB Statement No. 71 Pension Transition for Contributions 
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. 

 
Net Position 

 

Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating and non-operating revenues, expenses, 
and contribution of capital. Net position is classified in the following three components: 

 
• Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, 

including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable 
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
• Restricted – This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net asset use 

through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions, or laws or regulations 
of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provision or enabling 
legislation. 

 
• Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of net position of the District that are 

not restricted for any project or other purpose. 
 

Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
Deferred Outflows/ Inflows of Resources 

 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents 
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow 
or resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 
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In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item, which arises 
only under  a  modi f ied  accrua l  bas i s  of  account ing  tha t  qua l i f i es  for  repor t ing  in  th i s  
ca tegory. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds of 
the balance sheet. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that 
the amounts become available. 

 
Long-Term Debt and Interest Payable 

 

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the appropriate activities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance 
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds 
payable a re  repor ted  ne t  of  the  appl icable  bond  premium or  d i s co un t .  Bond i s suance  cos t s  
a re  immediately expensed in the Government- Wide Financial Statements in addition to the Proprietary 
and Fiduciary Fund Statements in accordance with GASB No. 65. In the Fund Financial Statements, except 
for advances from other funds, long-term liabilities are not presented. Consequently, long term debt is shown 
as a reconciling item in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-
Wide Statement of Net Position. In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, interest payable on long-
term debt is recognized as the liability is incurred for governmental activities and business-type activities. 
In the Fund Financial Statements, only propriety fund types recognize the interest payable when the liability 
is incurred. 

 
Net Position Flow Assumption 

 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted 
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources.  To calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net 
position and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, 
a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is 
the government’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net 
position is applied. 

 
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following categories: Net 
Investment in Capital Assets consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by 
outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets. External 
creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments restrict restricted Net position. 
Unrestricted Net position is all net position that do not meet the definition of “invested in capital assets, net 
of related debt” or “restricted net position.” 

 
Pensions 

 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the CSA’s San Bernardino 
County Employee's Retirement Association (SBCERA) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SBCERA. 
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
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Note 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Cash, cash equivalents, and investments include balances of monies deposited with the County Treasurer 
which are pooled and invested for the purpose of increasing earnings through investment activities. 
Interest earned on pooled investments is deposited to the CSA’s account based upon the CSA’s average 
daily deposit balance during the allocation period. Cash, cash equivalents, and investments are shown at the 
fair value as of June 30, 2015. Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as 
investment earnings reported for that fiscal year. Investment earnings reports interest earnings, changes in 
fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation, maturity, or sale of investments. The 
County’s practice is to hold investments until maturity. 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details of their 
investment policy and disclosures related to investment credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest 
rate risk and custodial credit risk, as required by GASB Statement No. 40. 

 
Interest income and realized gains and losses earned on pooled investments are deposited quarterly to the 
District’s accounts based upon the District’s average daily deposit balances during the quarter. Unrealized 
gains and losses of the pooled investments are distributed to the District annually. Cash and cash equivalents 
are shown at fair value. As of June 30, 2015, Cash and cash equivalents are reported in the District’s financial 
statement as unrestricted cash of $9,124,980 and restricted cash of $50,780 for a total amount of $9,175,760. 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details of their 
investment policy and disclosures related to investment credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest 
rate risk and custodial credit risk, as required by GASB Statement No. 40. 

 
Note 3: RESTRICTED CASH 

 
The District issued bonds under the authority of California Government Code Section 25210.1 to finance 
certain water and sewer improvement. The District reports the bonds according to the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Section S40. All the District’s bonds matured as 
of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004. The portion of the matured Bonds and interest held by the 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer/Tax-Collector of the County of San Bernardino amounting to $50,780 is 
reported as restricted cash. 
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Note 4: CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
Capital asset activity during the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows: 

 
Sewer: 

 
 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

 
Balance Balance 

July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015 

Land $ 10,000 - - 10,000 
Construction in process    -   -   -    - 

Total capital assets not being depreciated   10,000   -   -   10,000 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Land improvements 4,019,471 - - 4,019,471 
Structures and improvements 218,810 - - 218,810 
Infrastructure 35,404 - - 35,404 
Equipment and vehicles   110,322   -   -   110,322 

Total capital assets being depreciated     4,3484,007   -   -   4,384,007 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Land improvements (3,188,893) (89,702) - (3,278,595) 
Structures and improvements (53,892) (4,863) - (58,755) 
Infrastructure (3,344) (2,360) - (5,704) 
Equipment and vehicles   (35,548)   (7,355)   -   (42,903) 

Total accumulated depreciation     (3,281,677)   (104,280)   -   (3,385,957) 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net       1,102,330   (104,280)   -   998,050 
Total capital assets, net  $  1,112,330   (104,280)   -   1,008,050 

 

Water: 
 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

 
Balance Balance 

July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015 

Land $ - 71,000 - 71,000 
 

Construction in process   806,706   34,818  (743,809)   97,715 
 

Total capital assets not being depreciated   806,706   105,818  (743,809)   168,715 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Land improvements 4,856,167 919,063 - 5,775,230 
Structures and improvements 56,290 - - 56,290 
Equipment and vehicles 19,991 - - 19,991 

Utility plant in service   369,760   -   -   369,760 

Total capital assets being depreciated       5,302,208   919,063   -   6,221,271 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Land improvements (1,698,705) (168,159) - (1,866,864) 
Structures and improvements (56,290) - - (56,290) 
Equipment and vehicles (19,991) - - (19,991) 

Utility plant in service   (139,707)   (8,217)   -   (147,924) 

Total accumulated depreciation     (1,914,693)   (176,376)   -   (2,091,069) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net   3,387,515   742,687   -   4,130,202 

Total capital assets, net  $   4,194,221   848,505      (743,809)   4,298,917 
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Note 4: CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

 
Construction in Progress 

 
Construction in progress at June 30, 2015 represents the following projects: 

 
Capital Outlay 

Final Through Remaining   Projected Year 
Budget  June 30, 2015 Commitment Completion 

 

Chlorinators $ 105,000 678 104,322 2016 
Meter replacement project     633,330    4,163    629,167 2016 

 

Total $ 738,330     4,841   733,489 
 

The District has entered into several contractual agreements for the development and/or improvement of 
the capital projects listed above. 

 

Note 5: MATURED AND UNREDEEMED BONDS AND INTEREST PAYABLE 

The schedule of changes in short-term debt is as follows: 
Balance at   Balance at 

June 30, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015 
 

Matured unredeemed bonds $30,000 - - 30,000 
Matured interest 20,780   -     -     20,780 

`     
Total capital assets being depreciated $ 50,780   -     -      50,780 

 

In 1972,1974,1982, and 1990 the County’s Board of Supervisors approved the issuance of Series A, 
Series B, Series C, and Series D General Obligation Bonds, respectively, to finance the acquisition of 
water and sewer facilities within the County Service Area 64. Authority for the issuance of the bonds is 
provided under the County Service Area Law, Section 2521.1 et seq. of the California Government Code. 

 
Series A bonds matured in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, Series B bonds matured in the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2004, Series C Bonds matured in the fiscal year ending June 30, 1997, and Series D 
bonds matured in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2000. At June 30, 2015, the District had Matured and 
Unredeemed Bonds Payable of $30,000 and Interest Payable of $20,780 from the Series A, Series C, and 
Series D issuances. 

 

 
 

Note 6: PROPOSITION 111 APPROPRIATION LIMITS 
 

Proposition 111, which added Article XIIIB to the State Constitution, established limits on budget 
appropriations in order to restrict government spending. Management has reviewed the proceeds of taxes 
received by the District during the 2014-2015 fiscal year and believes the revenue to be in accordance 
with the guidelines established by Proposition 111. 
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Note 7: WATER REPLACEMENT EXPENDITURES 

 
For purposes of defining and implementing a physical solution to the high desert’s overdraft of the 
Mojave Basin Area, a Watermaster was appointed by Riverside County Superior Court in 1996 to oversee 
the adjudicated area. The District is within a subarea included in the 1996 judgment. If the downstream 
subarea obligation is not met, producers of water in the upstream Mojave Basin Area then must provide 
supplemental water to the downstream subarea. To maintain proper water balances within each subarea, 
the judgment established a Free Production Allowance (FPA) and provides for the Court to review as 
appropriate. All water produced in excess of the FPA must be replaced through supplemental water, or by 
transfer of unused FPA from another producer at a cost per acre foot. This action has resulted in quarterly 
reports that are verified by the Watermaster. This action also resulted in makeup and replacement obligations 
determined annually by the Watermaster. All makeup and replacement obligations result in supplemental 
water purchases from the Mojave Water Agency and private Water Purveyors. 

 

 
 

Note 8: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The Victor Valley Wastewater Reclamation Authority (VVWRA) is a Joint Powers Authority, and the 
District is represented on the VVWRA board by the First Supervisorial District. The District collects fees 
on behalf of VVWRA from new development to connect to the sewer system, and pays the VVWRA for 
sewage treatment fees. For fiscal year 2015, sewage treatment fees incurred were $661,184. As of June 
30, 2015, $85,638 of treatment fees was due to the VVWRA and was recorded as due to other governments 
on the statement of net position. 

 

 
 

Note 9: RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

Plan Description. Employees of the District participate in the County of San Bernardino’s (County) cost- 
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan (the Plan) administered by the San Bernardino 
County Employee's Retirement Association (SBCERA). The Plan is governed by the San Bernardino Board 
of Retirement (Board) under the California County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL) and the 
California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). The Plan’s authority to establish and 
amend the benefit terms are set by the CERL and PEPRA, and may be amended by the California state 
legislature and in some cases, require approval by the County of San Bernardino Board of Supervisors 
and/or the SBCERA Board. SBCERA issues a stand-alone financial report, which may be obtained by 
contacting the Board of Retirement, 348 W. Hospitality Lane, 3rd Floor, San Bernardino, California 
92415-0014. 

 
Benefits Provided. SBCERA provides retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits. SBCERA 
administers the Plan which provides benefits for two membership classifications, General and Safety, and 
those benefits are tiered based upon date of SBCERA membership. Safety membership is extended to 
those involved in active law enforcement and fire suppression. All other members, including the District’s 
employees, are classified as General members. Generally, those who become members prior to January 1, 
2013 are Tier 1 members. All other members are Tier 2. An employee who is appointed to a regular position, 
whose service is greater than fifty percent of the full standard of hours required are members of SBCERA, 
and are provided with pension benefits pursuant to Plan requirements.
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The CERL and PEPRA establish benefit terms. Retirement benefits for the General Tier 1 and General 
Tier 2 Plans are calculated based on age, average final compensation and service credit as follows: 
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Note 9: RETIREMENT PLAN (continued) 
 

 
 

General – Tier 1 
 

General – Tier 2 

Final Average Compensation Highest 12 months Highest 12 months 
Normal Retirement Age Age 55 Age 55 

 

Early Retirement: Years of service required 
and/or eligible for 

Age 70 any years Age 70 any years 
10 years age 50 5 years age 52 
30 years any age N/A 

 

Benefit percent per year of service for normal 
retirement age 

2% per year of final 
average compensation for 
every year of service credit 

2.5% per year of final 
average compensation for 
every year of service credit 

Benefit Adjustments Reduced before age 55, 
increased after 55 up to age 
65 

Reduced before age 67 

Final Average Compensation Limitation Internal Revenue Code 
section 401(a) (17) 

Government Code section 
7522.10 

 

Contributions. Participating employers and active members, including the District and the District’s 
employees, are required by statute to contribute a percentage of covered salary to the Plan. This requirement 
is pursuant to Government Code sections 31453.5 and 31454, for participating employers and 
Government Code sections 31621.6, 31639.25 and 7522.30 for active members. The contribution 
requirements are established and may be amended by the SBCERA Board pursuant to Article 1 of the CERL, 
which is consistent with the Plan’s actuarial funding policy. The contribution rates are adopted yearly, based 
on an annual actuarial valuation, conducted by an independent actuary, that requires actuarial assumptions 
about mortality, expected future service (including age at entry into the Plan, if applicable and tier), and 
compensation increases of the members and beneficiaries. The combined active member and employer 
contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits for employees that are allocated during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Participating employers may pay 
a portion of the active members’ contributions through negotiations and bargaining agreements. 

 
Employee contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 ranged between 7.07% and 13.52% 
for Tier 1 General members and between 6.37% and 7.88% for Tier 2 General members. 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

 
At June 30, 2015, the District’s reported a liability of $1,213,957 for its proportionate share of the County’s 
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
The District’s proportion of the County’s net pension liability was based on the District’s FY 
2014 actual contributions to the County’s pension plan relative to the total contributions of the County. 
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At June 30, 2015, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows 
  of Resources *   

Deferred Inflows 
  of Resources **   

 
$ 215,390 $ (715,219) 

 

*  Total deferred outflows include change in assumptions, and change in proportion 
and differences between share of contributions. 

 

* Total deferred inflows include differences in expected and actual expense, and net difference 
between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments. 

 
The $215,390 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting from the District’s 
contributions to the County’s plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details of their 
pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, actuarial 
assumptions, and discount rates, for the current year and two preceding years computed in accordance with 
GASB 68, Accounting and Reporting for Pension Plans, for the year ended June 30, 
2015. 

 

 
Note 10: FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS 

 
From time to time the District may receive funds from various Federal and State agencies. The grant 
programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which is to ensure 
compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any disallowed claims, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures 
which may be disallowed by the grantors cannot be determined at this time, although the CSA expects 
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

 

 
Note 11: RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The County has self-insurance programs for public liability, property damage, unemployment insurance, 
employee dental insurance, hospital and medical malpractice liability, and workers' compensation claims. 
Public liability claims are self-insured for up to $3.0 million per occurrence. Excess insurance coverage over 
the Self-Insured Retention (SIR) up to $57 million is provided through a combination of insurance policies 
as recommended by Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., Broker of Record, as follows: Primary Liability coverage 
$6 million excess of $3.0 million self-insured retention with Lloyd’s (Brit Syndicated 2987 – 
100%) and Gemini Insurance Co.; Excess Liability coverage for $11 million, excess of $6 million with 
National Casualty Co.; and Excess Liability coverage of $15 million, excess of $17 million with Allied 
World Assurance Co. In addition, Great American Assurance Co. provides excess liability coverage of 
$25 million, excess of $32 million. No settlements related to these programs have exceeded insurance 
coverage in the last three years. 
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Note 11: RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

 
The Workers' Compensation program was restructured to include a cash flow SIR that applies per 
accident/per payment year as follows: $2.0 million 1st year; $1.25 million 2nd year; $600 thousand 3rd year 
and each year thereafter, with coverage provided by State National Insurance Co. for up to $3 million 
for employer’s liability, and up to $150 million limits for workers’ compensation per occurrence. Property 
damage claims are insured on an occurrence basis over a $25 thousand deductible, and insured through 
CSAC-EIA (California State Association of Counties –  Excess Insurance Authority) and reinsured with 
Lexington Insurance Co. and with several insurers like AWAC, Ironshore, Partner RE, and Lloyd’s of 
London, among others. 

 
The County supplements its self-insurance for medical malpractice claims with a $25 million policy ($35 
million aggregate) with BETA Risk Management Authority, which provides annual coverage on a claim 
made form basis with a SIR of $1 million for each claim. 

 
All public officials and County employees are insured under a blanket Comprehensive Disappearance, 
Destruction, and Dishonesty policy covering County monies and securities, with Berkley Regional 
Insurance Co. with a $100 thousand deductible, and excess limit up to $10 million per occurrence. 

 
The activities related to such programs are accounted for in the Risk Management Department’s internal 
service funds (“Funds”), except for unemployment insurance, and employee dental insurance, which are 
accounted for in the General Fund.  The liabilities recorded in these Funds are based on the results of 
actuarial studies and include amounts for allocated and unallocated loss adjustment expenses.   The liabilities 
for these claims are reported using a discounted rate of 0.324% and an actuarially-determined 
80% confidence level. It is the County’s practice to obtain actuarial studies on an annual basis. 

 
The total claims liability of $232.10 million reported at June 30, 2015 is based on the requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, 
which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial 
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 

 
See the County of San Bernardino’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details of their 
claims liability in accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk 
Financing and Related Insurance Issues, at June 30, 2015. 

 

 
Note 12: CONTINGENCIES 

 
The District is subject to other legal proceedings, claims, and assessments that arise in the ordinary course 
of its business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these 
actions will not materially affect MHAIA’s financial position, changes in net position and cash flows. 
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Note 13: RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 
The following schedule summarizes the effects of the prior period adjustment to the Government- 
wide Statements. 

 

Government-wide: 
 
  

 

Business-type 
Activities 

 

     Sewer          Water          Total 
 
Net position at June 30, 2014, as previously reported $ 4,669,824 $ 9,049,994 $13,719,818 
 

Adjustment to record GASB 68 pension liability   (955,865)  (902,297)  (1,858,162) 
 

Net position as July 1, 2014, as restated           $ 3,713,959  $ 8,147,697      $11,861,656 
 
 

Note 14: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 2, 2015, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued, and has determined that there are no transactions that will have a 
significant impact on the CSA.
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SVL CSD Proposed Financials/Budgets 
 

Please find the following reports for our study: 

1. Projected budget for Spring Valley Lake CSD 

2. Projected Services and Supplies for Spring Valley Lake CSD including contracted services. 

3. Projected Administration expenses for Spring Valley Lake CSD. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies 
 

 

Members of the community of Spring Valley Lake have decided to investigate the feasibility 

of creating a “Spring Valley Lake Community Services District” (referred to as SVLCSD, or 

“the District”) to provide certain municipal level services for the community that are 

currently being provided by San Bernardino County. The Spring Valley Lake Exploratory 

Group (the “Group”) was formed to study the financial feasibility of local control over 

certain services, prepare a study, and provide communication and feedback to the 

community. One of the responsibilities of the Group is to evaluate the District’s financial 

feasibility and cost effectiveness. The Group has prepared a financial forecast as part of its 

evaluation responsibilities. 
 

 

This financial forecast presents, to the best of the Groups’ knowledge and belief, the 

District’s expected net position and change in net position (or results of operations) for the 

forecasted years ending June 30, 2020 and 2018, under the assumptions that the District 

will continue to be operated by the County for fiscal years 2018 and 2019, and will be 

operated independent of the County beginning fiscal year 2020. A financial forecast for 

fiscal year 2019 is not presented as it is expected to be similar and substantially 

comparable to fiscal year 

2018. The Group understands that the County will continue to operate the District for 
some 

portion of fiscal year 2020, but the forecast has been prepared under the hypothetical 

scenario that the District would operate independently for all fiscal year 2020. Accordingly, 

the forecast reflects the Group’s judgment as of June 21, 2018, the date of this forecast, 

of the hypothetical conditions and its hypothetical expected course of action. The 

assumptions disclosed herein are those that the Group believe are significant to the 

forecast. The summary of assumptions is not an all‐inclusive list of the assumptions used 

in the preparation of the forecasted financial information. There will usually be differences 

between forecasted and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do 

not occur as expected, and those differences may be material. 
 

 

The comparative historical information for fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 

2015 are extracted from the County Service Area No. 64 – Spring Valley Lake financial 

statements for those years. Those financial statements should be read for additional 

information. The comparative budget information for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is 

extracted from the County Service Area No. 64 – Spring Valley Lake operating budget, 

as obtained from the County for that year. 

 

LAFCO 3233

Attachment I



Note 1: Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

 

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statements presentation 
 

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. 
The principal operating revenues of the District’s enterprise funds are charges to 
customers for water sales and sanitation services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
include the cost of salaries and benefits, services and supplies, administrative expenses, 
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these 
definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 
Financial reporting is based upon all GASB pronouncements including the Codification 
of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidelines. 

 
Summary of Assumptions 

 
a.   Sanitation Services and Water Sales 

 FY 2018 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts, 
which were higher than the FY 2018 budget. 

 FY 2020 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts, 
which assumes the same number of connections, rates, and usage. 

b.   Solid Waste Fees 

 FY 2018 – No amount was forecasted since the service is not anticipated to 
be included in District activities for that year. 

 FY 2020 – The forecasted revenue is based on similar activity at other 
comparable community services districts. 

 

c. Permi
t 

t and Inspection Fees and Penalties 

  FY 2018 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget amounts. 

  FY 2020 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget and FY 2017 

  actual amounts. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies (continued) 

Summary of Assumptions (continued) 
 

d.   Connection Fees and Other Services 
 FY 2018 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget and FY 
2017 actual amounts. 

e.   Salaries & Benefits 

 FY 2018 – Expenses were forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Expenses were forecasted based on a comprehensive salaries 
and benefits schedule based on the estimated number of employees necessary 
to operate the District independently from the County. The salaries and 
benefits schedule is based on comparable community services districts, 
adjusted for the size of the District. 

f. Services & Supplies 

 FY 2018 – Expenses were forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Expenses were forecasted based on a combination of data 
obtained from the FY 2018 budget and equivalent expenses from comparable 
community services districts, adjusted for the size of the District, and including 
additional setup costs such as professional services and information 
technology. 

g.   Water Replacement 
 FY 2018 – Expenses were forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget and FY 

2017 actual amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Expenses were forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget and FY 
2017 actual amounts. 

h.   Utilities 

 FY 2018 – Expenses were forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Expenses were forecasted based on a combination of data 
obtained from the FY 2018 budget, FY 2017 actual amounts, and equivalent 
expenses from comparable community services districts, adjusted for the size 
of the District. 

i. Depreciation 
 FY 2018 – Expenses were forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Expenses were forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

 

Summary of Assumptions (continued) 
 

j. Administration 

 FY 2018 – Not applicable 

 FY  2020 –  Administration expenses were separately forecasted based 
on a combination of data obtained from the FY 2018 budget, FY 2017 actual 
amounts, and equivalent expenses from comparable community services 
districts, adjusted for the size of the District. Administrative expenses are 
presented in a separate column by natural classification, and allocated 50% to 
the Sewer function and 50% to the Water function for financial reporting. 

k.   Property Taxes 

 FY 2018 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 
l. Special Assessment & Other Taxes 

 FY 2018 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 
m. Investment Earnings 

 FY 2018 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 
n.   Transfers Out 

 FY 2018 – Transfers out were forecasted based on the FY 2018 budget 
amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Transfers out were not included in the forecast, since the related 
expenses were already included in the forecast of operating expenses, and no 
additional payments to the County would be anticipated. 

o.   Other Revenues (Expenses) 
 FY 2018 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 

 FY 2020 – Revenue was forecasted based on the FY 2017 actual amounts. 
p.   Change in Net Position 

 FY 2018 – The most significant differences between the FY 2018 forecast and 
the 2018 budget are related to Sanitation Services and Water Sales revenues, 
and Depreciation expense, which wasn’t included in the FY 2018 budget. 

 FY 2020 – The most significant differences between the FY 2020 and FY 
2018 forecasts are related to the inclusion of the Solid Waste function, the 
Salaries & Benefits and Services & Supplies expenses, and the elimination of the 
Transfers Out in FY 2020. 
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Findings 

It is the belief of this group that changing the management to a locally run CSD without the 

connection and ties to the County will result in significant cost savings.  These savings will allow 

the SVL CSD to mitigate future rate increases for years to come. 

In addition, the locally run CSD with a Board of Directors comprised of residents and onsite 

management of functions will provide the community with more representation relative to 

services provided.   

Expense management at a local level and more accountable to the residents will result in lower 

costs.  Case in point are the Water meters and the Spring Valley Lake Monument entrance 

projects.  We believe that local management would not have approved the monument saving 

$250,000 of local resident’s money.  Local management would likely have chosen different 

meters saving over $200,000 in local resident’s money.  While at a large county level that may 

not appear to be significant, it would still be close to $500,000 in savings for our community.  

These decisions are better made locally (by a locally elected board) where there is more 

accountability to constituents – those that pay for the services. 

Local management will allow the community to look at other services and opportunities that 

may be better served by a local CSD.   

Creating a local municipality directed by members of our community, will give our community a 

“seat at the municipal” table.  An SVL-CSD can leverage the relationship with the local HOA 

creating a cooperation in representing our residents and meeting our community’s needs. 

We are concerned that some may look at these numbers and contest the ability to save that 

much money.  Understand that due diligence has been put into creating this revenue/expense 

model that includes but not limited to: 

1. Comparing numbers to other current CSD’s.  We have met with both the Helendale and 

Phelan/Pinon Hills CSD’s and have confirmations of our beliefs that both costs and services 

will improve with a locally managed CSD. 

2. Creating actual expense models. 

3. Consulting with actual local resources for contract work. 

4. Having a CPA firm familiar with Special Districts and CSD’s review our numbers and provide 

input. 

In looking at the large picture, the residents of the community need to be given the opportunity 

to choose or not choose local governance. 
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Transition Plan 

The first year of newly created CSD will be a most critical time.  A well planned and executed 

hand off from County departments to local management will be effectuated without impacting 

service levels to our customers.  This can be accomplished in different ways: 

• SVL – CSD could contract with the County for a period to continue existing services until 

such time the SVL – CSD can hire and start providing services. 

• SVL – CSD could contract with local private companies and partner with other CSD’s for 

a short period of time. 

The transition process will be reviewed by the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) as 

well as an evaluation of all the revenues, reserve funds and equipment that will be transferred 

to the new CSD. 

There are assets critical to the operation of a newly created CSD that will need to transfer from 

the County Special Districts to the newly formed CSD.  Current “pooling of assets” by Special 

Districts will make it difficult to work through this process.  But do understand that funds from 

CSA 64 have been used to purchase those assets and/or those funds have been set aside in 

reserves.  Those assets are clearly the property of CSA64 and will need to transfer to the newly 

formed SVL-CSD. 

• Equipment. 

• Cash 

• Reserves 
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Conclusion 

In conclusion, we recommend that the San Bernardino County Board of Supervisors and LAFCO 

let the residents of Spring Valley Lake decide through an election if they want to create a new 

CSD and assume the services currently provided by various County departments.  Please note 

the following reasons: 

Vision for the Spring Valley Lakes CSD 

“Self-determination and local control represent the foundation of the American governmental 

system, and perhaps no form of government is more “local” than the independent special 

district. Special districts are local government agencies that provide public infrastructure and 

essential services, including but not limited to, water, fire protection, recreation and parks, 

and garbage collection. Since California became a state in 1850, voters have established over 

2,000 independent special districts to meet their local needs.” 

This is a quote from the Special District Formation Guide provided by the California Special 

Districts Association (CSDA) and California Local Agency Formation Commission (CALAFCO).  

This statement clearly spells out: 

1. Self Determination and local control represent the foundation of the American 

governmental system.  An SVL CSD will bring government and decision making closer to 

the people that are being governed.  A local CSD will clearly provide this foundation and 

a representative government for services that is focused solely on the constituents of a 

newly formed SVL-CSD. 

2. Government by constituents at a local level will insure decisions based on what is best 

for this community. 

3. County management of services was never the goal for communities of size that can 

manage their own services.  That said, the creation of a local CSD (where possible and 

feasible) should be the goal of not only the local residents but the management of the 

county itself.  We look forward to the County/Special Districts assisting us with this 

transition if voted in by the residents. 

Financial 

As evidenced in the projected financial statements, a local CSD can operate at a much more 

efficient level.  It is not so much a matter of costs at a local level as it is the costs associated 

with working under the significantly larger county structure with the burden to pay a portion of 

the mammoth overhead.  The costs from that level that are pushed down to the local water 

and sewer customers are overly cumbersome.  Between creating a leaner management model 

and outsourcing non-critical services costs will be significantly reduced.
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Local Control 

No one can argue that the residents of Spring Valley Lakes will not be better represented by a 

Board of residents voted in by their peers.  That is the foundation of local governance.  A locally 

elected board will clearly make decisions based on what is best for this community without 

having to consider the operations of Spring Valley Lakes along with the other 90 CSA’s.  

Examples have been spelled out earlier in this document. 
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Appendix 
 

• Existing Boundaries 

• Spring Valley Lake Map 

• Solid Waste Opportunity 

• Personnel Expense Model 
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EXISTING BOUNDARY – SVL – CSA 64 
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SPRING VALLEY LAKE MAP 
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Solid Waste Opportunity 
 
 

Total Lots 4215 

EQ 310 

ESFR Lots 3905 
 
 

Annual Trash Fee $252.00 
 
 

Total Solid Waste Revenue $984,060.00 
 
 

Franchise Fee Rate 10.00% 
 
 

Franchise Fee                                                       $98,406.00 
 

Dump Fees $85.14  

 

Total 
 

$332,471.70 

 

% used 
 

5.00% 

 

Reimbursed 
 

$16,623.59 

 

Net to SVL CSD 
$315,848.12  

 

Total Net to SVL CSD 
 
$414,254.12 

 

 

Per Homeowner 
$106.08  
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Employee Expense Model/Contract Labor 

 

 # Salary Benefits Total per Employee Total 

Administration      

   General Manager 1 $150,000.00 $60,000.00 $210,000.00 $210,000.00 

   Administrative Staff 4 $50,000.00 $20,000.00 $70,000.00 $280,000.00 
      
Total Mgmt & Admin 5    $490,000.00 
      
Water      

   Manager 1 $100,000.00 $40,000.00 $140,000.00 $140,000.00 

   Staff 3 $55,000.00 $22,000.00 $77,000.00 $231,000.00 
      
Total Water 4    $371,000.00 
      
Sanitation      

   Manager 1 $100,000.00 $40,000.00 $140,000.00 $140,000.00 

   Staff 1 $55,000.00 $22,000.00 $77,000.00 $77,000.00 
      
Total Sanitation 2    $217,000.00 
      
Board of Directors      

   Stipends 5 $6,000.00  $6,000.00 $30,000.00 

   Benefits 5 $12,000.00  $12,000.00 $60,000.00 
      
Total Board of Directors 10    $90,000.00 

      
Total Salaries and Benefits     $1,138,000.00 
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Dissolution of CSA-64 and 
Spring Valley Lake CSD Resolution 

 
EXHIBIT B 
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a. J,i L l.;1. .LI I J. ., ,,:1 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

( 

RED PARRS. REGIONAL, AGREEMENTSa COOP AG 1 S'l'ATE WIIDLIFlil Bi>, MOJAW HrutROWG :; 

Acting upon the recommendation of Regional Park Director, the Board, 
on motion of Supervisor Betterley, duly aecondad by Supervisor Bcckord, 
and carried, hereby approves the Cooperative Agreement dated 
Morch 17, 1969, by and bea,eon the State of California, Department of 
Fish and Game and the County of San Bernardino fo-r operation and iroin
tenance of Mojave River Wildlife area to be 'known as the Mojave Hcrrowo 
Regional Pa-rk, and further authorizes its Chairman to sign aaid agree
ment indicating this Board's approval of the terms and conditions 
therein contained. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED hy the Board of Supervisors of tha county of 
San Bernardino, State of California, by the following vote, 

AYES I SUPERVISORS I Bette:r.ley, Beckord, a;raiu, i'.:_::·.:· .. 
NOES1 SUPERVISORSa None 

ABSENT, SUPF.RVISORS1 Mikesell, Smith. 

I, V. D~NNIS WARDLE, County Clc1k .ind !<M1Hic10 Cieri: o! tho Or.ard of Supervisors of San OcrnarcliM Cnt•n• 
·- • <.;;;.if., hcrcb1 certify thi~ wF•Y t-.. b~ .: ,; !:, .,~~ ;,;:.d corro::ct copy of th:? rrc,;rcl of th:1 ,, .:ii n 1.:,'· ,: IJ, :.L"' 
~rd of Supervisors, by voto of the mornt;c:rs present, as thu same api;oilrs ! 1 ii.~ : ,r i 1 · ! . . • ,1 ::,d 
· rd a~_lto mo,eun11 of ·--.W'6.l. 7..l~S9 ~L,-. ... , .............. , ..... ,, .............. , . , ·,.,, · · · · · 
Dated: -~ ..,t, 1 ')I. DENNIS WARDLE, t;:n•1ol;• o,.,1;.1rk and 

0X-OftlclA Clerk of !,Id Board · 

~~~---··· Deputy 

.. .. .. 

·1 
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COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
between 

THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME 
and 

THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 
l FOR THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF MOJAVE RIVER WILDLIFE AREA

2 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 17 day of M,icc h ,
3 196&, by and between the State of California, acting by and through its duly appointed, 

4 qualified, and acting Director of the Department of Fish and Game, hereinafter called the 

5 State, and the County of San Bernardino, a political subdivision of the State of California, 

6 hereinafter cal led the County. 

7 

8 

W I T N E S S  ET H: 
WHEREAS, the State has acquired by deeds dated August 20, 1968 and 

9 October 21, 1968, from the Kemper Campbell and Litta Belle Campbell Inter V1vos Trust 

10 certain real property located in the County of San Bernardino, recorded December 3, 1968, 

11 and Document Nos. 144 and 145 in Book 7140, pages 570 and 574, Official Records of San 

12 Bernardino County; and 

i3 ·WHEREAS, the County desires to cooperate with the State in the operation

14 and maintenance of said area kno� as Mojave River Wildlife Area; and 

15- WHEREAS, the State desires to cooperate with the County in the operation

16 and maintenance of said area; and

17 WHEREAS, the State and the County desire-to preserve the beauty of this area 

1s· and to enhance it by development of fish and wildlife habitat and provide for recreational us� 

19 related thereto; ;<. . ., 

20 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for and';i.n��cinsideration of the 
I 

21 covenants, agreements, and stipulations hereinafter expressed; do hereby ·mutually agree as 

22 follows: 

23 1. The County will prepare overall plans for development and use of said 

24 wildlife area substantially as approved by the Wildlife Conservation Board on September 26, 

25 1967, and will at Its sole cost and expense develop planned facilities. The facilities to be 

26 developed by the County shall be of the type usually associated with outdoor recreation 

27 developments, such as picnic areas� fishing, camping, boating, �wimmln�, equestrian trails, 

28 hunting, etc., and are not to include amusement type development or concessions, such as 

29 roller coasters, ferris wheels, or those types of amusement commonly fo'und at carnivals. 

30 2. The State reserves the right to review and approve the overall development

.31 plans and proposed use:i to determine concurrence with the g_eneral objectives of said 

32 ildlife area and the statutory requirements of the Wildlife.Conservation Board. Hunting will 

. ( 

... 
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1 be considered as one of the recreational uses of the area. Such hunting, .if allowed, shall be 

2 compatible with other recreational uses. The State reserves the right to build a ~ 
production fish hatchery on the area. -,, 

3 3. The. County will commence development of the property within one year 

' 4 following the date hereof and will complete an access road to County road standards within 

5 three years fo II owing the date of this agreement. 

6 4. The Couhty will, upon completion of said development, pr.ovlde all 

7 necessary maintenance and upkeep of the said wildlife area for the term hereof. Such 

8 maintenance shall include, but not be limi~ed to keeping access roads,. parking areas, 

9 sanitary facilities, and other improvements developed by County in good repair and free from 

10 unsightly conditions and debris accumulations. 

ll ·5. -It is understood that the public shall have free and unrestricted ingress 

I 12 and egress to said wildlife area except at such times as the maintenance and upkeep operations 

i3 of the County do not permit it. 

14 6. The State hereby permits the County to the exclusion of all other persons, 

15 firms, or con,orations, to operate or permit others to operate such concessions compatible 

16 with the purposes of this project as may enhance and benefit public recreation, to the end 

17 that greater use and enjoyment of said area may be provided. Upon the establishing of any 

18 such concessions, the rights of the public shall thereupon become subject to the operation of 

19 such concessions and to such rules and regulations as may be promulgated by the County 

20 relative thereto. All such concessions shall be administered in.accordance with the standards 

21 prescribed by the State laws applicable to public recreational areas. 

22 7. The County may authorize or permit such concessions, special services or 

23 accommodations to serve the public as County may deem fit and proper, and all charges, fees , 

24 collections, and profits derived by the County therefrom or otherwise under this agreement 

25 shall be used by the County solely in the furtherance of the purposes herein set forth. Subject 

26 to paragraph 6, the County may at its discretion impose and collect charges or fees for the 

27 admission of motor vehicles to said wildlife area. All charges and fees for concessions, 

28 special services, or accommodations established by_ the County shall be subjebt to prior 

29 written approval of the State; and the County shall reserve in the State in any permit, 

30 license, contract or lease for concessions, special services, or accommodations the right to 

-31 audit or examine the records thereof. 

32 8. All earnings received by the County or Its successor in interest, as a 

-2 -
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l result of farming or grazing on project lands shall be used exclusively on the area for one or 

2 a combination of the following purposes: (1) Construction of recreation fac.ilities, 

3 (2) improvement of wildlife habitat, or (3) undergrounding of utility· lines. Accounts and 

4 records of such funds received and their disbursement shall be kept by the County and made 

5 available for review at the request of the State., Farming shall be limited to the production 

6 of forage crops and grazin~ limited to domestic livestock. The acreage -devoted to these 

7 uses shall not exceed 300 acres. Such farming and grazing operations shall be conducted in 

8 a manner compatible with and in enhancement of, . the aesthetic'and recreational 

9 opportunities provided on the property. -

10 9. This agreement shall be for the term commencing with the date hereof and 

11 ending December .31, 2018. By mutual agreement of County and State, the term oft.his 

12 agreement may be extended at the end of said period. In the event of a breach of the • ' 

i3 contract on the part of the County, the State, in addition to any other remedies it may have, 

14 may terminate this agreement upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to the County. 

15 10. All notices which may be·given by either -party to the otlier sliall be 

16 deemed to have been fully given when macle in-writing and deposited In the United-States 

17 mail, certified and postage prepaid, and addressed to the County as-follows: Board of 

18 Supervisors, County of San Bernardino, Courthouse, San Bernardino, California; and to the 

19 State as follows: Department of Fish and Gaine, Wfldlife Conservation Board, 1416 Ninth 

20 Street, Sacramento,.Califomia 95814. The address to which the-notices shall or may be 

21 mailed as aforesaid may be changed by written notice by such party to the other as 

22 herelnbefore provided, but nothing contained herein shall preclude the giving of any such 

23 notice by personal service. 

24 11 • This agreement is not assignable by the County in whole or in part 

25 without written consent of the State first had and obtained and any such-assignment without 

26 written consent of the State first had and obtained shall be null and void • 

27 . 12. The parties hereto agree that the County and,any of Its agents and 

28 employees, in the parforman~e of this agreement, shall act in an independent. capacity and 

29 not as offi_cers or employees or agents of the State. 

30 13. The County agrees to indemnify and save harmless the State, its officers, 

•31 agents, and employees from any and all claims and losses to any person, firm or corporation, 

32 arising out of the exercise by the County of its rights and obligations• under this agreement~ 

- 3 -
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1 14. The attached sheet, entitled "Part B, Addendum to General Conditions 

2 Applicable only to contracts involving Reimbursement in-whole or in part by the IJnited 

3 States of America" is made a part of this agreement. 
, 

4 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, thi~. agreement has been executed by and on behalf 

5 of the parties hereto the day and year·first•above written. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

·31 

32 

ATTEST: 
V. DENNIS WARDLE, County Clerk 
and ex"'1)fficio clerk of said Board 

By 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

~~~ ~IA,cifrman 
Board of Supervisors 

Deputy 

W-IW.--'-.l-'POL_!SY~4 S".9:.:"-'-----f 
D~partm,mt cf Gon• rol S•rvlcc:s 

APPROVED 

AUG 15 196!/12, clL._e~ 
By ANDREW R. LOlU, Director 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME 

By:ecu~ 

WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD 

-4 -
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PAla EIIPLOX~Ell'l' PHACTICl!S 

In aonnootlon •1Ch the pertormanoo ot work under th1a oontroat, tho Contraotor agree• •• tollow11 

l 1) 'Die Cont.-..ator wlll not wt1ltull7 dlaartalnato agaln1t 11nY e11ployae or appltoant tQr o• ploymont ba
aau• a or raoo, color, rol1g1on, anoeat1"7, or national ortgtn. Tho Con~raotor wlll take att1rmat1Yo aotton to 
en• ura t.hat appltaant• aro o:wplo¥ed, and that •~p,loyaa• are troatisd dur11tj!. employment, w1thout regard to \.he1r 
race, color, ro11,t1on, 11naeatey, or national ort,;tn. Such action • hall tnalude, but not bo 11::altod to, t.he 
follawtnsr o•ploym• nt, uprredlng, 4011otton or tron• tor; r.,or1.1ttaont or reot"ult• ont 111Svort1~11ng; layoct or 
ton,1nat1on: rato11 or pay or other ronn, or oompen•atlon; and • oloat1on tor tro1n1ng, 1nolu41ng epprent1o•
• tilp. The Contn1otor •~••• to pa• t 1n oon• ploi.lou• plaoea, avoilable to a11plo7eo1 an4 applloant• tor employ• 
ll'ent 1 not.1oea. Standard Pom 809, to be provided by the awardlng authority •ettin9 forth th• provie1ona of' 
tl1 L• 'f'• .Le l:!lllployment Pr,u::tice• • act~o'!,, 

(2) The Contractor will ••nd to eeoh lAbor union or representative ot worker• \llth whfch h.- ha• a 
eol \ol!'t iv• ~arqalning agraenumt or othar contract or undar• ta.nding, a Natic:e ta Labor Uniona (Standard 
Funa HOB) to be provided by tho awardinq authority, advi • ing tho • aid labor union or wor'ker •' ropr•aentativo 
ot ~he Contractor•• c:ommltmanta under thi• • ai.:tion, and • hall pa• t c:opie• of the notice in con• picuou• place• 
ava, lable to H1ployee• and appliC'anta for employraent.. 

(;t) 'nle Contrnctor wlll por111t a00a11 to hl• reoorde or e11r,lo111ent 1 e11plo:,• e11t o4Yert1eemente, appll
cat1on ram•, and other r,ortinant data and reaord• by the Palr f'.aploy• ent Prttot1011 Co11111111cn 1 the awartUag 
authority or any other appropriate agency or the State or Callrornia 4.,ignated by the a>tar41ng author1ty, 
tor the purpoaea or 1nve• t1g• tlon to aa0ortain oompllanon tdth the Pa1r Eapla1•ent Prttotloe• eeotlou or thla 
oontr11ct. 

(4) A rinding or wUlrul violation or the Pair Eap101unt Praot10u uot1on or th1o oontraot or of the 
Pa1r Emptoy• ont Pructloe• Aat • hall be regarded by the aw11r41ng a\1thar1ty •• a bae1,- tor determlnlng the con
traotOr to be not a •re• pan• 1b1e bidder• a • to tuture oontroot• tor Wh1oh auoh contr11ctor may aubmlt blda, tor 
1. .. 1voklng the Contractor•• prequal1t1catlon rating, 1t • ny, an4 to-r retualng Co eatftbllah, re-e• tablleh or re
new a prequalitloaUon ratlnl( tor the c::,ntrAotor. 

The 9ward1ng authorlty •hall den a r1nd1ng at willf"ul Y1olfttlon ot the Palr Employment Praot1ce• Aat to 
have occurred upon reae1pt or wrltl,en notloe rrcin the Palr £cployraont Praot10•• C0N1ia•ion t.hat 1t ha• 1nve•~ 
gated and 411.0nalned that tho Contreotor ha• violated the Pa1r i:oploy• ent Praot1oe• A0t and ha• 1• eue4 an 
or4or under Labor Code Soot1on 1426 or cbt.a1ned an 1n,1unotlon under LI.bar Coda Seot1on 1429. 

Upon reoolpt or 1uoh written notice trca the Pa1r iaplo711ent Praot1ca• Co111111• a1on, the awa,'41ng author
tty shall. not1r1 the, Cr.itractor that Llnleaa he demonatr• tne to the aat11raat1on ot the awar41ng au.thorlt:r 
within a • tated per1o4 that the vlolatlon hal bean acrreotecl, h1• prequnl1t1oaUon retlng w>..11 be reYoked at 
iha e:a:p1rat1.on of ILlDh par1o4. 

,s) The Contraotor a,:reaa, that 11hould the awarding authority 4eteraaine that the Contractor h,a• not 0011• 
pllocl w1th the Pair Faploy11ent Praot1oeo eect1ot1 of th11 ocntract, then pur• uant to Lebor Coda uot10n1 l?JS 
and 1775, the Contractor ahall, a• a penalty to the awarcUns authority, torfelt tor eaoh calendar day, or 
portion thoreof 1 tor each peracn who"'"' den1e4 a• r,loymant •• a r••ult or auoh non-0011pl1anoe, the penalt1e• 
pro,tded 1n the Labor COde tor v1olatlon or pra•allin,t ware rato•• SL.lah 110nle1 may be reoovered. troa the 
Contreator. The awarding authority ma," cleduGt any • uch d11•a,e11 traa any 11onle1 4Llo the Contraato?" tram the 
Stato or Cal1rorn1a. 

(6) (al Noth1n11 contained 1n thh Pa1r 1:aployaent Praot1oe• aaot1on •hall ba oon• truoc1 1D any 11anner or 
fashion 10 •• to prevent the award.in« authority or the State ot Ca11torn1a tr011 pur• u1ng an:, other re'lediea 
that •111 be aVR11a'ol• at law, 

(b) Noth1ng oontalnecl 1n thh Pair l:.aploy111nt Pract1ooa 11ot10n •hall be oonetrued 1n any manner or 
ra•h1on 10 a• to re(li.alro or pera1t the hlrlnr ct allena on rubl1o worke 1 •• prohibited by tho prov1110n1 at 
aectlon l.650 ot the Ca11torn1a Lobar Co:Se, or an employee not permlttad by the Nat1onal Labor Selatlon• Aot.. 

( ?l Pr1or to award or tho oontroct, the Contr•otor • hall cert Uy to the award1ng author1t7 thet he baa 
ar w1ll meet tho tallowing • tan4ard• tor 1ttlnnatlv1 oo• pllanoe, wh1oh •hall be evaluated 1n eaoh oa• e by the 
awRnUng authorlt)'1 

(a) Tho Contractor • hall pro,ido ,ivtd.anoe, a • requh·ed by the awarding authority, that he haa not1-
t1ed all 1uperv11ore, tororaen an4 ocher peraonttel orrtoere 1n wr1t1ng ot the content at the •at1-d1• dr1111-
nttt1on olauaa and their re• pon111b111tiea Llnder it. 

(b) The Contrliator • hall provide evtdo~aa, a1 re(lulred. by tho awarding authority, that he ha• 
not.itle4 all 11cu.raea ot e•ployee rdterral• (1nollodlng untona, employaaent ageno1ea 1 a4vartlle11ent•, Departaent 
ct lnployment) ot the content or the ant1-41• cr1na1nlllt1an olau•e. 

(c:) Th• contractor shall l:ilo a baaic c:oapliance roport, Standard Pora 810, • compliance Rdport• 
foi- all contract.a in •xc:••• of $5,000.00 and Standard Por11 811 for all contract• of ,5,000.00 or lea• aa 
required by the awarding authority. Willfully falae atatemonta mado in auch report• • hall be pu.ni•habl• •• 
pr;ovided by law. Th• comp11anc• report •hall al • o ap• ll out t.h• • ourca• of the work force and who h•• the 
reaponaibillty for dat• rmining whom to hire, or whether or not to hire. 

(d) Peraon.ill:r I er throueh ht• ?"eproi,en-tattYae, Che Contractor ehall, throur,h negoUat1on• wlth the 
union• wlth whom ho tw• •£rdementa, att.a,.pt co d.e•elop an agreement wh1oh ~illt . 

• 1. Spell out rt1pan11b111t1• a tor non-d1aorh11nat1on program in hiring, refarral, upgrading 
and training. 

2, Otherw1• o 1•plement an arnra,at1ve ant1-d11crl111nat1on prcgra. 1n ~•rn,• or the un1on•• 
apaolUo area• or akUl and r.ecgraph7, to the enll that qual1r1ec1 •1nor1ty •orker• wUl be anUable an4 given 
an equal opportunity tor 01plo7eent. 

(al The Contractor • hall not1ty the oontrect1ng •F•noy or oppo11t1on to the ant1-41ocr1111nat1on 
Qlauae by 1nd1vlrtua\a I t11"11• or oreanlzatlon• during the per1D4 ot 1t• prequal1t1oat1on. 1 

(81 Th• Contractor w1ll 1nolu4e the prov1aion• or the rorego1ng paregraph• l through 7 1n_ ovary• r1r1t 
Uer •ubocntraat, ao that • Lich prov1• 1on• wlll be binding upon oaoh • uoh auboontr• otor, 

- llleviaed 7/1/66) 

- -·- --• • .... -------•11•t'\• .. • ,.. , ... , ... •' .. , r .... . .. 
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               APPROVED(CONSENT CALENDAR) 
               BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
            COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

    MOTION    AYE    MOVE     AYE     AYE   SECOND  
           1             2             3             4             5       
 

    DENA M. SMITH, CLERK OF THE BOARD 
 

    BY  ____________________________________________ 
 

    DATED:  August 22, 2006 
 
                  ITEM  045 
 

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORSREPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORSREPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORSREPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS    

OF SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIAOF SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIAOF SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIAOF SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA    

AND RECORD OF ACTIONAND RECORD OF ACTIONAND RECORD OF ACTIONAND RECORD OF ACTION    

 

August 22, 2006 
 

 

FROM: THOMAS A. POTTER, Director   
        Regional Parks Department 
 
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME (STATE CONTRACT NO. 
WC464)  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Amendment No. 2 to Cooperative Agreement No. 96-1098 
with the State of California, Department of Fish and Game (State), extending the contract term 
through December 31, 2030 for operation and maintenance of the Mojave River Wildlife Area 
(also known as Mojave Narrows Regional Park) at no cost impact. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  On March 17, 1969, the Board of Supervisors approved a 
cooperative agreement with the State that allowed the County to operate and maintain the 
Mojave River Wildlife Area (Mojave Narrows Regional Park) in Victorville through December 31, 
2018.  As a condition of the 2002 Resources Bond Act Per Capita Program, California Clean 
Water, Clean Air, Safe Neighborhood Parks, and coastal Protection Act of 2002 (Proposition 40), 
all grants exceeding $100,000 require at least 20 years of land tenure.  Since the County will be 
utilizing Proposition 40 funds in excess of $100,000 to finance the Front Entry Gate Improvement 
Project at Mojave Narrows Regional Park, the term of the current cooperative agreement with the 
State needs to be extended. 
 
The proposed Amendment No. 2 extends the current lease to December 31, 2030, which grants 
San Bernardino County twenty-four years of land tenure at Mojave Narrows Regional Park and 
satisfies the conditions for use of Proposition 40 funds.  Except as amended, this Cooperative 
Agreement remains unmodified and in full force and effect.  By mutual agreement of the County 
and State, the term of this agreement may be further extended at the end of Amendment No. 2. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item has been reviewed by Deputy County Counsel Fiona Luke 
(387-5474) and the County Administrative Office (Tom Forster, Administrative Analyst, 387-4635) 
on August 11, 2006. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  There is no financial impact from this amendment. 
 
SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT(S):  1st 

 

PRESENTER:  Thomas A. Potter, 387-2340 
 

Record of Action of the Board of Supervisors 
AGREEMENT NO. 96-1098 A-2 

CC:  Parks – Potter w/agree 
        Contractor c/o Parks w/agree 
        ACR – Mejico w/agree 
        IDS w/agree 
        Risk Management 
        County Counsel – Luke, F. 
        CAO – Forster 
 
 
        File w/Agreement No. 96-1098 
 
mb (08/25/06) 
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Dissolution of CSA-64 and 
Spring Valley Lake CSD Resolution 

 
EXHIBIT D 
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